Analysis of a Novel Elevated Source Drain MOSFET with High Performance and Low Leakage Current

•

Analysis of a Novel Elevated Source Drain MOSFET with High Performance and Low Leakage Current

2000 12

•



5 . フト

, 가

,

, , , , , , , ,

,

,

,

가

,

•

.

,

• , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , •

, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , CAD . , , , , , , , , ,

ASIC .

· · 가

· , 가

.

2001 1 8

Analysis of a Novel Elevated Source Drain MOSFET with High Performance and Low Leakage Current

by

Kyung-Whan Kim

Submitted in Partial Fulfillment of the Requirements for the Degree Doctor of Philosophy

Department of Electrical and Electronic Engineering The Graduate School

> Yonsei University Seoul, KOREA

> > 2000

Contents

List of Figures	iii
List of Tables	viii
Abstract	ix
1. Introduction	1
2. Backgrounds	7
2.1. The Characteristics of Elevated Source Drain MOSFET	7
2.1.1. Gate Grooved and Gate Recessed MOSFET	9
2.1.2. E-S/D MOSFET with Selective Epitaxial Growth	
Process	15
2.2. Factors to be Considered in Deep Submicron Devices	18
2.2.1. Threshold Voltage Lowering Effect and Drain-Induced	
Barrier Lowering Effect	18
2.2.2. Gate-Induced Drain Leakage (GIDL)	22
2.2.3. Hot-Carrier-Induced Current Generation:	
Substrate Current and Gate Current	28
3. Design of the Proposed E-S/D MOSFET	34
3.1. Fabrication Steps for the Proposed E-S/D MOSFET	35

3.2. Design of the Recessed Channel Structure	41
3.3. Large-Angle-Tilted Implantation for Source Drain Extension	45
3.4. Selectively Doped Channel Structure	48
4. Results and Discussion	54
4.1. Models Used in the Simulations	54
4.1.1. Incomplete Ionization of the Impurities	54
4.1.2. Band-to-Band Tunneling Model	56
4.1.3. Mobility Models	57
4.2. Design of Conventional LDD MOSFET	59
4.3. GIDL Characteristics of E-S/D and LDD MOSFETs	62
4.4. Short Channel Characteristics	71
4.5. Current Driving Capability	74
4.6. Hot-Carrier Characteristics	77
4.7. E-S/D MOSFET with Selective Epitaxial Growth:	
Design & Electrical Characteristics	81
4.8. Junction Capacitance	91
5. Conclusion	94
References	97
Abstract (in Korean)	105

List of Figures

2-1.	Simplified schematic cross section of E-S/D MOSFET structure	8
2-2.	Schematic cross section of Gate Grooved MOSFET and Gate	
	Recessed MOSFET	10
2-3.	Surface potential distribution of (a) E-S/D MOSFET with corner	
	effect and (b) conventional MOSFET	11
2-4.	The lateral doping profiles of (a) LDD MOSFET and	
	(b) GR MOSFET structure	14
2-5.	Schematic cross sectional view of self-aligned recessed channel	
	SOI structure	14
2-6.	Conventional LDD MOSFET and SEG MOSFET	16
2-7.	Methods of preventing the degradation of short channel effects	
	caused by the facets	17
2-8.	Threshold voltage (V_T) roll-off characteristics as a function of	
	effective channel length (L_{EFF})	19
2-9.	Surface potential distribution for constant gate voltage	20
2-10.	$I_{\text{DS}}\text{-}V_{\text{GS}}$ plot for extracting the value of Drain-Induced	
	Barrier Lowering (DIBL)	21

2-11.	Simplified schematic view of gate-induced drain leakage generation	
	for n-channel MOSFET	23
2-12.	Energy band diagram of n^+ drain-gate oxide region	23
2-13.	Schematic cross sections of non LDD and fully overlapped	
	LDD device	26
2-14.	A schematic illustration of the hot-carrier-induced current generation	
	for n-MOSFET	28
3-1.	Main fabrication steps for the proposed E-S/D MOSFET	36
3-2.	Fabrication steps for the proposed E-S/D MOSFET	37
3-3.	Channel implantation and SDE implantation steps for the proposed	
	structure	38
3-4.	structure Cross sectional schematic of the proposed E-S/D structure	38 40
3-4. 3-5.	structure Cross sectional schematic of the proposed E-S/D structure Subthreshold characteristics of the proposed E-S/D MOSFET	38 40 40
3-4.3-5.3-6.	$\label{eq:structure} $$ structure $$$ Cross sectional schematic of the proposed E-S/D structure $$$ Subthreshold characteristics of the proposed E-S/D MOSFET $$$ The relationship between X_R and W_S for a given source drain $$ $$ the proposed the proposed $$ $$ $$ $$ $$ $$ $$ $$ $$ $$ $$ $$ $$$	38 40 40
3-4. 3-5. 3-6.	structure Cross sectional schematic of the proposed E-S/D structure Subthreshold characteristics of the proposed E-S/D MOSFET The relationship between X _R and W _s for a given source drain implantation condition	3840404043
 3-4. 3-5. 3-6. 3-7. 	structure	3840404043
3-4.3-5.3-6.3-7.	structure	 38 40 40 40 43 44
 3-4. 3-5. 3-6. 3-7. 3-8. 	structure Cross sectional schematic of the proposed E-S/D structure Subthreshold characteristics of the proposed E-S/D MOSFET The relationship between X _R and W _s for a given source drain implantation condition Threshold voltage roll-off characteristics of proposed E-S/D MOSFETs according to W _s DIBL characteristics of proposed E-S/D MOSFETs	 38 40 40 43 44
 3-4. 3-5. 3-6. 3-7. 3-8. 	structure Cross sectional schematic of the proposed E-S/D structure Subthreshold characteristics of the proposed E-S/D MOSFET The relationship between X _R and W _s for a given source drain implantation condition Threshold voltage roll-off characteristics of proposed E-S/D MOSFETs according to W _s DIBL characteristics of proposed E-S/D MOSFETs according to W _s	 38 40 40 43 43 44 44

3-10.	Determination of SDE junction according to the various angle	
	conditions of large-angle-tilted ion implantations	47
3-11.	DIBL characteristics as a function of tilt angle, $\boldsymbol{\theta}$	47
3-12.	Doping profile difference between uniformly doped and selectively	
	doped channel structure	48
3-13.	Three-dimensional projection plot of the doping concentration	
	for the proposed E-S/D MOSFET	49
3-14.	The process for achieving different channel profiles	52
3-15.	Two-dimensional electric field contours for the proposed	
	E-S/D MOSFETs	53
4-1.	$I_{\text{DS}}\text{-}V_{\text{DS}}$ characteristics of a sample E-S/D MOSFET $\hfill \hfill \hfi$	56
4-2.	Main fabrication steps of the conventional LDD MOSFETs	60
4-3.	Control of the effective channel length by help of the offset spacer	
	in LDD MOSFET	62
4-4.	GIDL currents for LDD MOSFETs as a function of drain voltage	63
4-5.	Simulated lateral electric field profiles for LDD devices at 2nm away	
	from the SiO ₂ /Si interface	64
4-6.	GIDL currents for HL according to the gate oxide thickness	65
4-7.	GIDL currents for E-S/D and LDD MOSFETs as a function of drain	
	voltage	66

4-8.	Contours of electric field and doping concentration for (a) HL and	
	(b) E-S/D MOSFET	68
4-9.	Simulated lateral electric field profiles for E-S/D and LDD devices	
	at 2nm away from the SiO_2/Si interface	69
4-10.		
	Cross sectional schematic of conventional LDD MOSFET and	
	the proposed E-S/D MOSFET showing the different location of	
	the maximum electric field	70
4-11.	GIDL currents for HL and E-S/D MOSFET according to gate	
	oxide thickness (T _{ox})	71
4-12.	DIBL characteristics of E-S/D and LDD MOSFETs	72
4-13.	Threshold voltage roll-off characteristics of E-S/D and LDD MOSFETs	72
4-14.	Breakdown characteristics of E-S/D and LDD MOSFETs	74
4-15.	$I_{\text{DS}}\text{-}V_{\text{DS}}$ characteristics of E-S/D and LDD MOSFETs $\hfill \hfill \hfi$	75
4-16.	$G_{m,max}$ characteristics of E-S/D and LDD MOSFETs	76
4-17.	$I_{\mbox{\scriptsize DSAT}}$ characteristics of E-S/D and LDD MOSFETs $\hfill \hfill \h$	76
4-18.	Lateral electric field distribution of E-S/D and LDD MOSFETs	78
4-19.	Contours of electric field for (a) LL and (b) ML. (continued)	79
4-19.	Contours of electric field for (c) HL and (d) E-S/D	80
4-20.	Main fabrication steps of the conventional SEG MOSFETs	82

4-21.	SEG MOSFET structures used for the simulation	83
4-22.	Removal of the epi-layer by ETCH command	85
4-23.	Threshold voltage roll-off characteristics of HL and SEG MOSFETs	86
4-24.	DIBL characteristics of HL and SEG MOSFETs	86
4-25.	G _{m,max} characteristics of HL and SEG MOSFETs	87
4-26.	$I_{\mbox{\scriptsize DSAT}}$ characteristics of HL and SEG MOSFETs $% \left(1,1,2,3,3,3,3,3,3,3,3,3,3,3,3,3,3,3,3,3,$	87
4-27.	GIDL current for HL-S compared with those of E-S/D and LDD	
	MOSFETs as a function of drain voltage	89
4-28.	Simulated lateral electric field profiles for HL-S, HL and E-S/D devices	
	at 2nm away from SiO ₂ /Si interface	90
4-29.	Junction capacitance of HL (continued)	92
4-29.	Junction capacitance of the proposed E-S/D MOSFET	93

List of Tables

4-1.	Process parameters of the conventional LDD MOSFET	s 61
4-2.	Process parameters of the simulated SEG MOSFETs	

ABSTRACT

Analysis of a Novel Elevated Source Drain MOSFET with High Performance and Low Leakage Current

Kyung-Whan Kim Dept. of Electrical and Electronic Eng. The Graduate School Yonsei University

A novel elevated source drain (E-S/D) MOSFET which has reduced leakage current and higher driving capability is proposed and analyzed. The proposed structure has recessed channel structure make use of dry etching process. The device characteristics are determined by the recessed channel depth and sidewall length, which are directly related with the dry etching process. Its main structural advantages are summarized as the elevated source drain extension (SDE) region and the selectively doped channel region. The elevated SDE region helps to avoid low-activation effect caused by very low energy ion implantations. The SDE implantation is performed with largeangle-tilted implantation technique. The selectively doped channel helps reducing the lateral electric field and the junction capacitances. In addition, the self-aligned poly-Si gate is formed by the inverted sidewall spacers so that self-alignment is realized for both source/drain and gate regions on the recessed channel.

In the proposed structure, elevated SDE region helps to alleviate the increase of parasitic resistance at the SDE region by adopting relatively higher implantation energy for the SDE implantation step. In addition, the problem of

gate-induced drain leakage (GIDL) current, which is degraded as the SDE dose is increased, significantly alleviated in case of newly proposed structure. Unlike conventional LDD and SEG MOSFETs, the GIDL current of proposed E-S/D device is decreased without sacrificing the driving current. The E-S/D MOSFET shows approximately one orders of magnitude lower GIDL current than that of LDD MOSFET (HL) having the same SDE implantation dose condition $(5 \times 10^{14} \text{ cm}^{-2})$ while maintaining the higher saturation current levels. The main reason for the reduction of GIDL current is the decreased electric field at the point of the maximum band-to-band tunneling as the peak electric field is shifted toward the drain side. From the hot-carrier simulation results, the lateral electric field of the ES/D device is significantly reduced compared with those of conventional LDD devices under worst bias condition. The selectively doped channel combined with the gradually varying doping distribution of SDE region helps to reduce the electric field near the drain edge. From the short-channel effect simulations, the DIBL and breakdown characteristics are enhanced compared with those of LDD devices. The V_T roll-off characteristics were slightly degraded due to the lack of impurities near the channel edges but the difference between the E-S/D and the LDD devices was comparable.

As the proposed E-S/D MOSFET has simple fabrication steps and simultaneously guarantees the improved device performance and the reduced leakage components, this structure is expected to be a potential candidate for the deep submicron device structures.

Keywords: elevated source drain, dry etching, self-align, SDE, GIDL, lateral electric field, selectively doped channel

Chapter 1 Introduction

Since the development of MOSFET structure in the early 1970's, MOSFET large-scale integration circuits (LSI's) have made great progress. The progress of LSI's is directly related to the scaling of MOSFET structures. By the down-scaling of MOSFET structures, the integration rate of transistors and the functionality of LSI's have been greatly increased. The device performance and the circuit operation speed also have been greatly improved. These facts are the main cause for the downsizing of MOSFET devices.

In the scaling method, the most important matter is to suppress the short channel effects [1-8] to ensure the transistor actions. To suppress the short channel effects, shallow junction and highly doped channel structure are essentially needed. Shallow junction is required for better controllability over conduction carriers and highly doped channel is required for preventing the penetration of depletion region at drain side. However, the shallow junction and highly doped channel have negative effects on the device performances. They make the series resistance of source/drain to be increased and the carrier mobility to be degraded. The junction capacitance is also increased. Fortunately, in the scaling method, unlike any other scaling factors, supply voltage seldom has been changed [9-10]. It is mainly to keep the compatibility with conventional systems. This has imposed additional merit for the improvement of the device performances. However, as the gate length of MOSFET's has been scaled down below 0.5µm, the increased electric field across the gate oxide and the hot-carrier induced degradation have become serious problems, and the supply voltage also started to decrease with the

downsizing of MOSFET structures. As a result, the improvement of device performance has been slowed down. Such problems worsen as the gate length is scaled down to $0.1\mu m$ or below.

As the MOSFET's have been scaled down to sub-0.1µm regime, some of scaling factors revealed its limitations for further scaling [11]. For example, the gate oxide thickness and the threshold voltage are restricted due to the direct tunneling of electrons and the leakage current, respectively. Such facts make the scaling of MOSFET structures more difficult because the device performance can be hardly improved. Furthermore, due to the extremely large number of transistors integrated on a chip, suppressing the cutoff leakage and decreasing the junction capacitance are also becoming very important for the low power and high-speed MOSFET technologies.

Since there are trade-off relationships between the device performance and the short channel behaviors, and the situation is even worse as MOSFET structures are scaled down to 0.1μ m regime, there have been many efforts to overcome such problems for maximizing the device performances. Modifying the device structure from the conventional structure is one of the effective methods for solving such problems. Elevated source drain (E-S/D) structure is one example of such modifications. This structure is expected to enhance the device performance even in the sub-0.1µm technologies. The main idea of the E-S/D structure is that the shallow junction can be more easily formed make use of the extra silicon region existing above the source/drain region.

Many E-S/D MOSFETs have been proposed to enhance the device performance and to suppress the short channel effects [12-25]. It was first proposed to effectively suppress the short channel effects by reducing the junction depth [12]. Thereafter, more attention has been given to hot-carrier problems and the improvement of the device performances [13-14]. ES/D MOSFET with Selective Epitaxial Growth (SEG) process [21-24], Grooved Gate MOSFET [15-16] and Recessed Channel MOSFET [17-20] are well known type of E-S/D MOSFETs.

E-S/D MOSFET with SEG process is one example of ES/D MOSFET, which utilizes the silicon growth by epitaxy. Crystalline silicon layer is selectively grown on the source/drain side resulting in the E-S/D structure. This technology is favorable in that the fabrication step is very similar to that of conventional devices except for the epitaxy process. However, facet generation and additional thermal budget problem exists in the process. Recently, many works concerning SEG process are being developed and widely studied in the device manufacturing fields.

Grooved gate MOSFET and recessed channel MOSFET are another kinds of E-S/D MOSFET. Unlike the E-S/D MOSFET with SEG process, these MOSFETs don't realize the ES/D structure by means of epitaxial growth of silicon. These methods use etching or field oxidation process to make the recessed channel structure. The main difference from the E-S/D MOSFET with SEG process is that the silicon is removed rather than additionally grown from the original silicon surface. Grooved gate MOSFET is reported to have advantages in suppressing the short-channel effects with the help of corner effect. On the contrary, it is also reported that the corner effect deteriorates the enhancement of device performances due to the large potential barrier. The recessed channel MOSFET structures are reported to have better trade-off relationships between the driving capability and the short channel effects. However, in respect of self-alignment problem and fabrication complexities, there are still rooms to be improved.

Recently, E-S/D MOSFETs are expected to be potential candidates for the sub-0.1 μ m devices [9],[18]. As stated previously, in the conventional MOSFET structures, the improvement of the device performance can be hardly expected for the sub-0.1 μ m devices due to the limitation factors such as the source/drain junction depth, the gate oxide thickness and the threshold voltage. The source/drain junction depth is becoming extremely shallow (<50nm) increasing the series resistance of source/drain region. The channel impurity concentration is becoming very high (~1×10¹⁸cm⁻³) degrading carrier mobility and isolation properties of the substrate. And the gate oxide thickness cannot be further decreased below 15nm due to the direct tunneling of electrons [10]. The threshold voltage also cannot be continuously decreased, to ensure low off-state leakage current.

In order to make ultrashallow junctions with the conventional ion implantation technology, very low-energy ion implantation and rapid thermal annealing is indispensable. However, the low implantation energy causes higher sheet resistance due to the low-activation effect [26]. In various recent works [26-28], the Source Drain Extension (SDE) region is usually formed with relatively higher implantation dose to ensure enhanced driving capabilities. But in conventional Lightly Doped Drain (LDD) MOSFETs, the increase of the SDE implantation dose results in the increase of the Gate-Induced Drain Leakage (GIDL) current [28]. GIDL is one of the major leakage components that determine the off-state leakage characteristics and it can also act as a scaling limiting factor in deep submicron devices [29-30]. Consequently, for the conventional LDD structures, there exists a significant trade-off relationship between the driving capability and the GIDL current. Since the aim of improving the device performance is very important as the device is scaled down, increasing the SDE dose seems to be inevitable. However, the problem of increased leakage current due to the increased SDE dose should also be carefully investigated and solved. As for the highly doped channel structure, the impurity scattering and highly doped p-n junction problem deteriorates the device performances. In addition, the junction capacitance is also increased resulting in the degradation of device speed.

In this thesis work, a novel self-aligned E-S/D MOSFET structure [31] is proposed to solve the ultrashallow junction and the heavily doped channel problems. The recessed channel of this structure is realized by the dry etching process, and its electrical characteristics are mainly determined by the shape of recessed channel. It has solved the self-alignment problem which is often the serious problem in the recessed channel MOSFETs. The proposed structure is self-aligned for both the source/drain and gate regions on the recessed channel. And it is designed to have elevated SDE region to improve the driving capability. The relatively higher energy ion implantation step combined with the large-angle-tilted implantation method is used for avoiding the low activation effect. The selectively doped channel and its impact on the hotcarrier characteristics are investigated. Conventional LDD MOSFETs with different SDE dose are designed to compare their electrical characteristics with that of the proposed structure. Several conventional E-S/D MOSFETs with SEG process are also designed for comparison with the proposed structure.

Since there have been difficulties in fabricating various kinds of device

structures having exact the desired design parameters, two-dimensional process and device simulators are used to study alternative MOSFET structures extensively [32].

This thesis work is organized as follows. In chapter 1, the introduction of this thesis work is presented. In chapter 2, the characteristics of E-S/D MOSFETs and the factors to be considered in deep submicron MOSFETs are explained. Particularly, previously reported ES/D structures and the theories of GIDL and hot-carrier effects are described more in detail. In Chapter 3, the details on the design of proposed ES/D MOSFET are discussed. Various simulation results confirming the benefits of the proposed structure are given in Chapter 4. The GIDL characteristics of the ES/D and conventional LDD MOSFETs are compared and the differences between these structures are explained. Short channel characteristics and current driving capability of the proposed E-S/D MOSFET are compared with the conventional ones. Several kinds of E-S/D MOSFETs with SEG process are presented and compared each other. Finally, the conclusion will be presented in Chapter 5.

Chapter 2 Backgrounds

In this chapter, the characteristics of elevated source drain (E-S/D) MOSFET and some of the factors to be considered in designing of deep submicron devices are described. The general features of the E-S/D MOSFETs are explained and the previously reported E-S/D MOSFETs are introduced to help for understanding the thesis work. The threshold voltage lowering effect and the drain induced barrier lowering effect among the short channel effects are explained for the analysis of the device characteristics. In addition, the Gate-Induced Drain Leakage (GIDL) and the hot-carrier effects are explained more in detail.

2.1 The Characteristics of Elevated Source Drain MOSFET

Elevated Source Drain (E-S/D) MOSFET is a modified MOSFET structure which has elevated source drain (or recessed channel) region unlike the conventional MOSFETs. It is also called Raised Source Drain MOSFET. Grooved Gate MOSFET [15-16], Gate Recessed MOSFET [17], Recessed Channel MOSFET [19] and the E-S/D MOSFETs with Selective Epitaxial Growth (SEG) process [21-24] are some examples of such E-S/D MOSFETs. Figure 2-1 shows simplified schematic cross section of E-S/D MOSFET. The main difference between E-S/D and conventional MOSFET is that the surface of S/D is located above the channel interface. To obtain such structure, one of the following should be proceeded: 1) the channel region is etched away 2) the S/D regions are additionally grown by epitaxy process. As can be seen



Fig. 2-1. Simplified schematic cross section of E-S/D MOSFET structure.

from the figure, the junction depth (X_J) can be more easily restricted to have very shallow junction in E-S/D MOSFET. It is shown that even the negative value of junction depth (*i.e.* X_J <0) is also possible for E-S/D MOSFETs.

E-S/D structure was first proposed to effectively suppress the short channel effects by reducing the junction depth while preventing the series resistance of the source/drain to be increased. As the hot-carrier induced degradation have become serious concern in the MOSFET technology, several modified structures, hot-carrier suppressed (HCS) MOSFET [13] and profile doped E S/D MOSFET [14] were proposed to solve the problem. Recently, the E-S/D MOSFETs are gaining more attention as potential candidates for the sub-0.1µm MOSFET structures. It is mainly because the improvement of device performance can be hardly achieved in the conventional MOSFET structures below 0.1µm dimension. On the other hand, the improvement of device performance can be expected in the E-S/D structure below 0.1µm dimension

because the junction depth can be scaled more freely without increasing the series resistance of source/drain regions.

2.1.1 Gate Grooved or Gate Recessed MOSFET

Figure 2-2 shows the schematic view of the Grooved Gate MOSFET and the Gate Recessed MOSFET. The process steps for fabricating the Grooved Gate MOSFET is as follows [15]: (1) elevated S/D delineation and the diffusion layer implantation for S/D; (2) sidewall oxide formation and selfaligned groove formation and B-ion punchthrough implantation; (3) gate oxidation and W gate electrode delineation and metallization. This process is reported to enable spacing of less than 0.1µm for the gate. According to Tanaka et al. [16], in the Gate Grooved case, large and steep potential barriers are formed at the corner of gate edges when $X_J < 0$ (see Fig. 2-1) and the device characteristics are dominantly affected by the existence of such potential barriers. Such "corner effect" is determined by corner angle α (0< α <90°) and the channel doping concentrations (see Fig. 2-1). As the corner angle α and the channel doping concentration are increased, the corner effect is becoming more definite. The potential barrier caused by the corner effect is maintained even if the channel length is scaled down. It means that the influence of the drain side is less severe by help of the potential barrier resulting in the better short channel characteristics. Figure 2-3 shows the surface potential distribution of the E-S/D MOSFET with corner effect and that of the conventional MOSFETs.



Fig. 2-2. The schematic cross section of Gate Grooved MOSFET and Gate Recessed MOSFET [15],[17].



Fig. 2-3. Surface potential distribution of (a) E-S/D MOSFET with corner effect and (b) conventional MOSFET [16].

However, the corner effect is known to deteriorate the driving capability due to the existence of large potential barrier. In the Grooved Gate MOSFET, the complex fabrication steps, unfitness for the dual (poly) gate MOSFET technology and the reduced driving capability problems should be solved for high performance applications.

Another method for fabricating E-S/D MOSFET is the Gate Recessed (or Recessed Channel) MOSFET [17],[19]. In such structures, the recessed channel is constructed as follows: (1) The field oxide is grown on the active region and the silicon is consumed during the oxidation step; (2) By etching all of the field oxide, recessed channel is formed on the active area; (3) After the channel implantations, poly-Si gate is formed on the recessed channel. The channel implantation is performed through the field-oxide-etched region resulting in the selectively doped channel structure. The channel doping and S/D doping are both decreasing near the channel edges. The lateral doping profiles of such structure is compared with that of conventional LDD MOSFETs in Fig. 2-4. This doping profile is obtained by the bird's beak of the locally oxidized channel and provides some advantages compared with LDD structures. The reported advantages are reduced junction capacitance by using the selective channel doping method, increased current driving capability by forming the deeper S/D junction, reduced hot-carrier generation by reducing the lateral electric field at the drain edge, reduced impurity scattering at channel edges and reduced penetration of the drain field through the source by graded drain doping profile.

However, the formation of the self-aligned poly-Si gate on the recessed channel is a difficult task for such structures. Emphasis on the self-alignment in both source/drain and gate structure in recessed channel region was made by J.H. Lee *et al.* [20]. Figure 2-5 shows the schematic cross section of selfaligned recessed channel SOI structure. This structure was reported to have achieved for the first time that the self-alignment was achieved in both source/drain and gate structure in recessed channel Silicon-On-Insulator (SOI) device fabrication. The device needs no margin in layer-to-layer registration due to the self-alignment.

However, it requires consideration from various structural aspects. This structure is reported to have "LOCOS-like" shape poly-Si gate, and it is expected that the fabrication difficulty and reproducibility still remain to be solved. Since the E-S/D MOSFETs are not yet the major device structure in the present-day LSI technologies, many efforts still have been made for the development of high performance E-S/D MOSFETs.



Fig. 2-4. The lateral doping profiles of (a) LDD MOSFET and (b) GR MOSFET structure [17].



Fig. 2-5. Schematic cross sectional view of self-aligned recessed channel SOI structure [20].

2.1.2 E-S/D MOSFET with Selective Epitaxial Growth Process

Elevated source drain (E-S/D) structure can be achieved with the Selective Epitaxial Growth (SEG) process. These types of E-S/D MOSFETs have very similar fabrication steps to those of conventional LDD MOSFETs. The SEG step is added to the conventional LDD MOSFET process to form the elevated source/drain region. Usually, after the source drain extension (SDE) implantation step, additional silicon layers are grown selectively at source/drain regions by epitaxy. Compared with other E-S/D MOSFETs, these kinds of structures (here after SEG MOSFETs for convenience) have benefit in the process compatibility.

The SEG MOSFETs have several advantages over the conventional MOSFETs. Epitaxially grown extra Si-layer above the source/drain region helps to solve the contact spiking problem and the silicon consumption problem caused by the silicide process. Furthermore, if the thermal budget is strictly limited, the extra Si-layer helps to reduce the junction depth. Figure 2-6 shows the difference between SEG MOSFET and conventional MOSFET.

On the contrary, the SEG type MOSFETs have some problems to be solved. The growth rate of the silicon during the epitaxy is different at the sidewall spacer edge or at the field oxide edge compared to that at the plain Si surfaces. Because of the difference in the growth rate, the facet is generated [33] as shown in Fig. 2-6. During the heavy source drain implantation, junction depth is not kept uniform due to the facet near sidewall spacer. More dopants are penetrated near the channel region deteriorating the short channel behaviors.



Fig. 2-6. Conventional LDD MOSFET and SEG MOSFET

As for the well-known methods to prevent such degradation of the short channel effects, one is the use of sidewall spacer twice [23] and the other is the use of removable nitride spacers [22]. Figure 2-7 shows the two methods to prevent the degradation of the short channel effects caused by the facets. In the first method, sidewall spacers are formed both before and after the selective epitaxial silicon deposition in S/D regions. In the second method, disposable nitride spacers are used before the selective epitaxial silicon deposition and then nitride spacers are completely removed. LDD implantation is performed and the permanent nitride sidewall spacers are formed to cover the facet regions. This method is advantageous in that the LDD junctions are not exposed to the high temperature prebake and deposition conditions. Shallow LDD junctions provide improved short channel behavior while maintaining good hot-carrier protection. Both the methods have in common that the facet region is covered with insulator material to avoid the facet effects. As a result, the short channel degradation caused by the facet is effectively suppressed.



Fig. 2-7. Methods of preventing the degradation of short channel effects caused by the facets [22-23]: (a) Second sidewall is used to cover the facet region. (b) Removable nitride sidewall is used prior to SDE implantation.

However, if the heavy source/drain implantation is performed after the facet region is covered, the device should be designed considering the device performances. It is because the insulator material which covers the facet region, has the effect of increasing the sidewall spacer thickness.

2.2 Factors to be Considered in Deep Submicron Devices

As the MOSFETs have been scaled down to submicron region, various kinds of phenomena are observed that were not observed in the long channel devices. These phenomena are so-called the "short-channel effects". The short-channel effects can be divided into three categories, one is the effects that affect the threshold voltage characteristics, the second is related to the subthreshold current characteristics and the third is the ones that affect the saturation current characteristics. Among the various short-channel effects, the threshold voltage lowering effect and the drain induced barrier lowering effect are explained because these effects are often used as major indicators for the short channel characteristics. In addition, the gate-induced drain leakage and the hot-carrier-induced current generation are explained more in detail, which are the main interest throughout the thesis work.

2.2.1 Threshold Voltage Lowering Effect and Drain Induced Barrier Lowering Effect

Threshold voltage (V_T) lowering effect is the most well known phenomenon among the short-channel effects [34]. The channel depletion charge consists of depletion charge which is influenced by gate and space charge which is caused by the junction depletion regions. As the channel length is scaled down, the space charge caused by the junction depletion region occupies a greater part of the channel depletion region. Consequently, gate needs a smaller control voltage, V_T , to turn on the device. As there is appropriate threshold voltage to effectively suppress the leakage current, threshold voltage lowering effect is the cause of increased leakage current deteriorating the device electrical behaviors. Usually, the threshold voltage adjust implantation is used to increase the threshold voltage. However, the degradation of mobility and the increase of junction capacitance should also be carefully considered.

The threshold voltage lowering effect is also regarded as an indicator for the scaling limitations. It is reported that in order to turn the device off properly at room temperature allowing process and temperature tolerances, a minimum threshold voltage of 0.4V is required [35]. In Fig. 2-8, the sample device A reaches more faster to its scaling limitation compared with the sample device B.



Fig. 2-8. Threshold voltage (V_T) roll-off characteristics as a function of effective channel length (L_{EFF}).



Fig. 2-9. Surface potential distribution for constant gate voltage. The potential barrier of the source is lowered in case of short channel device.

Drain-induced barrier lowering (DIBL) is another kind of short-channel effect that is widely used for estimating the amount of short channel degradation [1]. DIBL is a phenomenon that the potential barrier of source is lowered by the penetration of the electric field caused by the potential of drain side. Figure 2-9 shows the surface potential distribution along the channel that illustrates the concept of DIBL. As the distance between the source and drain is becoming closer (i.e. short channel case), the potential barrier of source side is lowered, which is greatly affected by the potential of drain side.

DIBL is more likely to occur 1) the deeper the source/drain diffusions, 2) the higher the substrate resistivity, and 3) the closer the diffusion-to-diffusion
spacing [1]. The main result due to DIBL effect can be summarized as follows: the decrease of threshold voltage and the increase of subthreshold current.

The DIBL is extracted using the I_{DS} - V_{GS} plot. Figure 2-10 shows the I_{DS} - V_{GS} plot with V_{GS} =0V. Usually, the DIBL is defined as V_{TH} = $V_{TH}(V_{DS}$ =0.1V)- $V_{TH}(V_{DS}$ = $V_{DD})$.



Fig. 2-10. I_{DS} - V_{GS} plot for extracting the value of Drain-Induced Barrier Lowering (DIBL).

2.2.2 Gate-Induced Drain Leakage (GIDL)

Gate-induced drain leakage (GIDL) is one of leakage current observed in off-state MOSFETs [29-30],[36-37]. Because there are growing demand for battery-operated portable electronics, minimizing the off-state leakage current is becoming more important. Furthermore, the GIDL is reported to play a key role in determining the scaling limitation in deep submicron devices [29-30].

GIDL occurs when there exists a large electric field across the gate oxide. From bias point of view, the gate is grounded and the drain is at V_{DD} . The simple schematic view of the gate-induced drain leakage mechanism for n channel device is shown in Fig. 2-11 [34]. The electric field is supported by charge in the drain depletion region. As the electric field becomes sufficiently large, an inversion layer is likely to be formed at the silicon surface of the drain side. However, as the minority carriers (i.e. holes) arrive at the surface to form the inversion layer, they are immediately swept laterally to the substrate. It is because the potential of the substrate is lower for holes than the surface potential of the drain. As a result, the holes are immediately swept to the lower potential substrate. The current component from this phenomenon constitutes the GIDL current.

Band-to-band or band-to-trap tunneling is reported to be the responsible mechanism for GIDL. Figure 2-12 shows the energy band diagram of the gate oxide- n^+ drain region. The possible components for the GIDL generation are presented. The mechanisms for the GIDL generation have been widely investigated. It was reported that the traps caused by hot-carrier injection







Fig. 2-12. Energy band diagram of n[†] drain - gate oxide region [38]. The possible components of the GIDL current generation are described.

might cause the GIDL to be increased. Ge preamorphization [39] and Fowler-Nordheim tunneling [40] were also reported to increase the GIDL current.

To suppress the GIDL current, several methods can be effectively adopted. Since the electric field between the drain and the gate is reduced as the gate oxide thickness (T_{OX}) is increased, T_{OX} can be increased to reduce GIDL. However, this method \dot{s} unfavorable because it results in the degradation of short channel characteristics and the reduction of current driving capability. Poly re-oxidation process was also reported to be effective in reducing the GIDL [30] due to the locally increased T_{OX} . Another method for reducing the GIDL current is minimizing the trap density near the Si-SiO₂ interface. This method is mainly related to the ultraclean fabrication technologies. The LDD structure was also reported to be effective in suppressing the GIDL current because the lateral electric field can be suppressed.

According to Chan *et al.* [36], to limit the undesirable GIDL current to 0.1pA per μ m channel width, the oxide field in the gate-to-drain overlap region must be limited to 1.9MV/cm. This relation sets another limit to the minimum oxide thickness or the maximum power supply voltage in MOSFET scaling, and can be described as [36],

$$V_{cc} = 1.2 + T_{ox} \times 1.9 MV / cm$$
 (2-1)

where T_{OX} is the gate oxide thickness.

In the n-channel MOSFET, the band-to-band tunneling results in the generation of electron-hole pairs and the holes are swept to the substrate region making the off-state leakage current. It occurs in regions of high electric field where the local band bending causes the tunneling probability to become significant.

The tunneling probability in the band-to-band tunneling can be extracted from the parabolic barrier properties [41]. For the parabolic barrier, E_0 is defined as the energy measured from the electron energy to the center of the band, and the form of (PE-E) is [42]

$$PE - E = \frac{(E_G/2)^2 - E_0^2}{E_G} = \frac{(E_G/2)^2 - (eE \cdot x)^2}{E_G}$$
(2-2)

where PE is the potential energy and E the incoming electron energy, E_G the bandgap of the semiconductor, and E the electric field. This form is also the simplest algebraic function that has the correct behavior at the band edges [41]. Then the probability can be given by the WKB approximation (Wentzel-Kramers-Brillouin method) [43]:

$$P_{t} \cong \exp\left[-2\int_{-x_{1}}^{x_{2}} |k(x)| dx\right]$$

= $\exp\left[-2\int_{-x_{1}}^{x_{2}} \sqrt{\frac{2m^{*}}{\eta^{2}} \left(\frac{(E_{G}/2)^{2} - (eE \cdot x)^{2}}{E_{G}}\right)} dx\right]$ (2-3)
= $\exp\left(-\frac{\mathbf{p}m^{*1.2}E_{G}^{3/2}}{2\sqrt{2}q\eta E}\right)$

where k(x) is the absolute value of the wave vector of the carrier in the barrier, and $-x_1$ and x_2 are the classical turning points. From the probability relationship, band-to-band tunneling is modeled with the following equation [36-37]:

$$J_{t} = \frac{A}{B} E_{s} \exp\left(-\frac{B}{E_{s}}\right)$$
(2-4)

where

$$A = \frac{2qm^* \mathbf{p} E_G^2}{h^3} \tag{2-5}$$

and

$$B = \frac{\mathbf{p}^2 \sqrt{m^* E_G^{3/2}}}{qh\sqrt{2}} = 21.3 \frac{MV}{cm}$$
(2-6)

where E_S is the electric field at the point of maximum band-to-band tunneling. This field has been modeled as [37]:

$$E_{s} = \frac{V_{DG} - V_{FB} - 1.12}{3T_{ox}}$$
(2-7)

This model is suitable for the devices with no LDD or with fullyoverlapped LDD's. Figure 2-13 shows the schematic cross section of devices with no LDD and with fully-overlapped cases.



Fig. 2-13. The schematic cross sections of non LDD (upper) and fullyoverlapped LDD device (bottom). The total electric field is the vector sum of E_{LAT} and E_{VERT} . By increasing the phosphorous doping, E_{LAT} is suppressed similar to non LDD case. In these cases, the lateral field is suppressed while the drain concentration is high enough so that the dominant tunneling point has a band bending of 1.12eV. The average electric field for the tunneling current equation is obtained by dividing the surface field by 2 [37].

On the other hand, for the devices with nonfully overlapped LDD's, the model in (2-7) is not adequate since the total band bending in the silicon is more than the required E_G due to drain depletion. The average electric field that the tunneling electron experiences should be used in (2-4) instead of surface electric field. In the nonfully-overlapped LDD, average electric field is [29],

$$E_{TOT} \approx (E_{VERT})_{avg} = \frac{E_s}{h} \qquad 1 \le h \le 2 \qquad (2-8)$$

For the derivation of η , the exact 2-dimensional doping profile, which varies according to processes, should be calculated with the help of device simulators.



Fig. 2-14. A schematic illustration of the hot-carrier-induced current generation for n-MOSFET.

2.2.3 Hot-Carrier-Induced Current Generation: Substrate Current and Gate Current

Hot-carrier effect is one of serious problems that occur as a result of downsizing process. Since the supply voltage has been changed much slowly unlike other scaling factors, hot-carrier induced degradation greatly menaced the device reliability problems. The hot-carrier current generation can be explained by impact ionization and channel hot-carrier injection. Impact ionization occurs when there exists a large electric field in the channel. The conduction carriers are accelerated to have sufficient kinetic energy to cause an ionizing collision with the lattice. The electron-hole pairs are created during the collision process. Furthermore, if the carriers acquire sufficient energy from the lateral electric field, they can surmount the $Si SiO_2$ barrier resulting in the channel hot-carrier injection. Thus, the measurement of substrate current and gate current are widely used as an indicator for estimating the impact ionization and channel hot-carrier injections.

The two current components are schematically illustrated in Fig. 2-14. The substrate current (I_{SUB}) is formed by the electrons or holes created by impact ionization process and drift into substrate contact. This substrate current is correlated with device degradation reducing the device lifetime [44-45]. The gate current (I_{GATE}) is usually formed by the conduction electrons with high kinetic energy, which can surmount the Si-SiO₂ barrier at the channel interface. The injected carriers constitute the gate current.

The substrate current model for n-channel MOSFET is simply expressed as [46],

$$I_{sub} = I_{ds} \int_{0}^{l_{sat}} \boldsymbol{a}_{n} dy$$
 (2-9)

where I_{ds} is the drain current, l_{sat} is the velocity saturated length of the channel, and α_n is the electron impact ionization rate. Note that α_n is directly correlated with the lateral electric field distribution and can be expressed as

$$\boldsymbol{a}_n = A_i \exp\left(-\frac{B_i}{E}\right) \tag{2-10}$$

where A and B are the ionization constants. E is the channel electric field. The channel electric field and potential can be expressed based on a quasitwo-dimensional model as [46]

$$E(y) = E_{sat} \cosh\left(\frac{y}{l_d}\right)$$
(2-11)

$$V(y) = V_{dsat} + I_d E_{sat} \sinh\left(\frac{y}{l_d}\right)$$
(2-12)

where y is the distance along the channel. (y=0 at the starting point of velocity saturation) E_{sat} is the electric field at which the carriers reach the velocity saturation. In the saturation region, the electron velocity saturates because the lateral electric field exceeds the saturation field, $E_{sat}=4\times10^4$ V/cm. l_d is an effective ionization length and can be expressed as [47]

$$l_d^2 = \frac{\boldsymbol{e}_{si}}{\boldsymbol{e}_{ox}} t_{ox} X_j$$
(2-13)

where t_{ox} is the gate oxide thickness and X_j is the junction depth. If (2-11) and (2-12) are solved for expressing E(y), and (2-10) is replaced for α_n in (2-9), The substrate current can be described as [48]

$$I_{sub} = I_{ds}A_i \int_0^{l_{sat}} \exp\left(-\frac{B_i}{E}\right) dy$$

= $I_{ds}A_i l_d \int_{E_{sat}}^{E_m} \frac{1}{\sqrt{(E_m^2 - E_{sat}^2)}} \exp\left(-\frac{B_i}{E_m}\right)$ (2-14)
 $\approx I_{ds}A_i l_d \frac{1}{\sqrt{(E_m^2 - E_{sat}^2)}} \frac{E_m^2}{B_i} \exp\left(-\frac{B_i}{E_m}\right)$

From the above equations, it is shown that I_{sub} depends exponentially on the E_m . Consequently, the exact modeling of E_m is very important in the modeling of the substrate current. If E_m is approximated to $(V_{ds}-V_{dsat})/l_d$, widely used form of I_{sub} is obtained as [49]

$$I_{sub} = I_{ds} \frac{A_i}{B_i} (V_{ds} - V_{dsat}) \exp\left(-\frac{l_d B_i}{V_{ds} - V_{dsat}}\right)$$
(2-15)

According to Arora and Sharma [48], E_m is approximated to $(V_{ds}-\eta V_{dsat})/l_d$,

which has considered the empirical factors ($0 < \eta \le 1$). l_d is also modified to take the bias dependency into account and is given as

$$l_{d} = l_{0} + l_{1}(V_{ds} - V_{geff}) + l_{2}(V_{ds} - V_{geff})^{2}$$
(2-16)

where $V_{geff}=V_{gs}-V_{th0}$. V_{th0} is the threshold voltage at $V_{bs}=0$, l_0 , l_1 , l_2 are fitting parameters. The substrate current equation can be then expressed as [48]

$$I_{sub} = I_{ds} \frac{A_i}{B_i} (V_{ds} - hV_{dsat})$$

$$\cdot \exp\left[-\frac{B_i}{(V_{ds} - hV_{dsat})} \{l_0 + l_1 (V_{ds} - V_{geff}) + l_2 (V_{ds} - V_{geff})^2\}\right]$$
(2-17)

The gate current generation is modeled by "lucky-electron model" [50]. The principle ideas of the model are based on the lucky electron concept. This model calculates the probabilities for certain scattering events to occur that result in current being injected into the gate. The total gate current can be obtained by integrating the flux of carriers injected into the gate from each location in the device structure. Channel hot-electron injection into the gate can result in the degradation of device performance due to the trapping of electrons in the gate oxide and the generation of interface traps [51].

To generate the gate current by hot electrons, the hot electrons must gain high enough kinetic energy from the channel electric field and has its momentum redirected towards the $SiSiO_2$ interface in order to surmount the SiO_2 potential barrier. The probability of an electron acquiring the required kinetic energy and retaining the appropriate momentum after redirection can be expressed as [51]

$$P_{\Phi_{b}} = \int_{\Delta\Phi=0}^{\Delta\Phi=\infty} \frac{\Delta\Phi}{4\Phi} e^{-[(\Phi_{b}+\Delta\Phi)/E_{x}I]} \frac{d(\Delta\Phi)}{E_{x}I}$$

$$= 0.25 \frac{E_{x}I}{\Phi_{b}} e^{-(\Phi_{b}/E_{x}I)}$$
(2-18)

where Φ_b is the Si-SiO₂ potential barrier, λ is the scattering mean-free-path of the hot electron.

The hot electrons, after having their momenta re-directed, have to travel vertically to the Si-SiO₂ interface, without suffering any other collisions, in order to be injected into the gate oxide. The probability of collision-free travel to the barrier peak, $P(E_{OX})$ is defined as the product of P_1 and P_2 , where P_1 is the probability factor weighted by the electron concentration in the inversion layer and P_2 is the probability factor of the scattering in the oxide image-potential well. $P(E_{OX})$ is approximated by [52]

$$P(E_{OX}) \approx \left[\frac{5.66 \times 10^{-6} E_{OX}}{\left(1 + \frac{E_{OX}}{1.45 \times 10^{5}}\right)} \times \frac{1}{\left(1 + \frac{2 \times 10^{-3}}{L_{eff}} e^{(-E_{OX}X_{OX}/1.5)}\right)} + 2.5 \times 10^{-2}\right] e^{(-300/\sqrt{E_{OX}})}$$

$$(2-19)$$

for $E_{OX} \ge 0$ and

$$P(E_{OX}) \approx 2.5 \times 10^{-2} e^{(-X_{OX}/I_{OX})}$$
(2-20)

for $E_{OX} < 0$.

where X_{OX} is the gate oxide thickness.

The gate current I_{gate} can be expressed in terms of the probability for each individual event to occur, and is described as [50],

$$I_{gate} = 0.25 \frac{I^2 E_m^3 I_{ds} P(E_{OX} \mid_L)}{I_r \Phi_b^2 (dE_x / dx) \mid_L} e^{-(\Phi_b / E_m I)}$$

$$\approx 0.5 \times \frac{I_{ds} X_{OX}}{I_r} \left(\frac{IE_m}{\Phi_b}\right)^2 P(E_{OX} \mid_L) e^{-(\Phi_b / E_m I)}$$
(2-21)

where E_m is the channel electric field at the drain end, L is the length of the channel and λ_r is the re-direction scattering mean free path.

Chapter 3 Design of the Proposed E-S/D MOSFET

As the MOSFET size shrinks to deep submicron regime, E-S/D MOSFETs have been received more attention because it has many advantages over the conventional MOSFETs. It is widely studied for overcoming the limitation of the conventional MOSFETs. Although the E-S/D MOSFET seems to be attractive for the deep submicron devices, there still exist a lot of problems to be solved. The main issue of the E-S/D MOSFET can be summarized as follows:

In the fabrication point of view, there have been a lot of fabrication methods proposed [12-25] but there are still confusion and the prevailing methods are still in the development stage. The complexity and the cost of the process are also critical issues for the development of the E-S/D MOSFET process. And the self-alignment problem exists because it is difficult to align the poly-Si gate on the recessed channel precisely [19]. Furthermore, it would be favorable if the process compatibility should be offered for the dual poly MOSFET technologies. In the performance point of view, the tradeoff relationship between the device performance and the short channel effect should be enhanced compared to that of the conventional LDD MOSFETs. In other words, the device performance should be improved without aggravating the short channel behaviors. Minimizing the parasitic resistance and the junction capacitance should be also carefully considered.

The proposed ES/D MOSFET is designed to take into account the issues stated above. In the fabrication method, emphasis on the self-alignment and simplified fabrication process are made. In respect of performance, minimizing the parasitic series resistance and the junction capacitance are considered without aggravating the short channel behaviors.

3.1 Fabrication Steps for the Proposed E-S/D MOSFET

The main fabrication steps for the proposed E-S/D MOSFET are summarized in Fig. 3-1 and schematically shown in Fig. 3-2. Two-dimensional process simulator TSUPREM-4 is used for the simulations [53]. After the mask oxidation on p-type (100) silicon wafer, the channel region is opened by dry-etching [15]. Silicon surface is etched to the depth of X_{R} . B⁺ (4×10¹² cm⁻², 45keV) and BF_2^+ (6×10¹² cm⁻², 90keV) implantations are performed for punchthrough prevention and threshold voltage adjustment, respectively. The implanted ions are blocked by the mask oxide, resulting in the selectively doped channel [17-20]. Nitride is deposited and etched to form inverted sidewall spacers which have the width of W_{S} . These structural parameters (X_{R} and W_s) have powerful influence on the device characteristics such as shortchannel effects and driving capabilities because they determine the shape of the SDE regions. In this work, W_s and X_R are selected 15nm and 30nm respectively to effectively suppress the short-channel effects. 50 gate oxide is grown. Poly-Si is deposited and etched until the mask oxide reveals. After etching all of the mask oxide, As^+ (5×10¹⁴ cm⁻², 25keV, 30° tilt) implantation is performed for the SDE regions. Large-angle-tilted implantation [54] is performed to guarantee the sufficient gate-to-drain overlap area. After the formation of 65nm thick 2nd nitride sidewall, which results in the final nitride sidewall spacer thickness of 80nm, As^+ (5×10¹⁵ cm⁻², 20keV) implantation is

Mask oxidation and dry-etching (lithography)

Channel V_T Implantation : BF_2^+ , 6 × 10¹² cm⁻², 90keV Channel P_T Implantation : B⁺, 4 × 10¹² cm⁻², 45keV

Inverted nitride sidewall formation : 15nm

Gate oxidation (T_{OX}) : 50

Poly-Si deposition & Poly-Si etching Mask oxide removal

Source Drain Extension (SDE) implantation : As⁺, 5×10^{14} cm⁻², 25 keV, 30 °

Sidewall spacer formation (Nitride, 65nm)

Heavy source drain implantation : As^+ , 5 ×10¹⁵cm⁻², 20keV

Annealing : RTA, 1000 , 10sec

Fig. 3-1. Main fabrication steps for the proposed E-S/D MOSFET.



Fig. 3-2. Fabrication steps for the proposed E-S/D MOSFET. (a) mask oxidation and dry etching (b) selective channel implantations (c) nitride sidewall formation and poly-Si deposition (d) poly-Si etching and mask oxide removal (e) large-angle-tilted (LAT) SDE implantation (f) n⁺ source/drain implantation.



Fig. 3-3. Channel implantation and SDE implantation steps for the proposed structure. (a) Selective channel implantation: Region (I): reduced lateral electric field at drain edge. Region (II): reduced junction capacitance. (b) Elevated SDE region: relatively high energy large-angle-tilted implantation for n⁻ region.

performed for the heavy source/drain regions. RTA is done at 1000 for 10s.

The proposed structure has several advantages. First, the self-aligned poly-Si gate is formed by the inverted sidewall spacers so that self-alignment is realized for both source/drain and gate regions on the recessed channel [20]. Since the definition of the poly gate needs only one lithography step, fabrication steps are simplified and can be easily adopted for the dual gate MOSFET technologies. Second ly, the proposed structure has the selectively doped channel profile as a result of channel implantation as shown in Fig. 3-3(a). With this profile, the junction capacitance is reduced as the doping concentration at the bottom of the drain region (II) is minimized. Thirdly, the proposed structure has elevated SDE regions so that low-energy ion implantation can be avoided. It should be pointed out that although there have been many E-S/D MOSFETs reported, most of the E-S/D structures have failed to notice the importance about the elevation of the source drain extension region. A lot of E-S/D MOSFETs have nearly the same source drain extension structures as those of conventional LDD MOSFETs. As shown in Fig. 3-3(b), relatively high energy (25keV) implantation is used by help of large-angle-tilted implantation.

The final device cross section is schematically shown in Fig. 3-4. The recessed channel depth is 30nm and the inverted sidewall width is 15nm, respectively. The self-aligned gate is formed by use of the inverted sidewall spacers. Second nitride spacers (65nm) are deposited to form the final sidewall thickness of 80nm. Source drain extension region is formed by help of large-angle-tilted implantations. Since the proposed E-S/D MOSFET requires only one lithography step for the definition of the gate and the recessed channel area, the fabrication process is simple and self-aligned. The selectively doped channel region is formed in region (I) and the region (II) is not affected by the channel implantations. The simulated subthreshold characteristics of the E-S/D MOSFET are shown in Fig. 3-5. Two-dimensional device simulator, MEDICI [55] is used for the simulation. The effective channel length is 0.154 μ m. As shown in the figure, the drain induced barrier lowering (DIBL) is defined as

 $V_{TH}=V_{TH}(V_{DS}=0.1V)-V_{TH}(V_{DS}=V_{DD})$. The subthreshold swing of the device is approximately 80mV/dec. There seems no sign of device punchthrough phenomenon.



Fig. 3-4. Cross sectional schematic of the proposed ES/D structure. Nitride sidewall spacers are formed twice resulting in the final thickness of 80nm.



Fig. 3-5. Subthreshold characteristics of the proposed E-S/D MOSFET.

 $L_{EFF}=0.154 \ \mu m$, SS $\cong 80 mV/dec$.

3.2 Design of the Recessed Channel Structure

The short channel effects in the proposed E-S/D MOSFET are mainly determined by the feature of recessed channel structure. The shape of the recessed channel structure can be described by the recessed channel depth (X_R) and the sidewall spacer width (W_S) . Figure 3-6 shows the relationship between X_R and W_S for a given source drain implantation condition. To explain the relationship between X_R and W_S in Fig. 3-6, some assumptions are made as follows: The poly gate lengths (L_{POLY}) are fixed regardless of X_R and W_S . The effective channel lengths (L_{EFF}) should have the same value regardless of X_R and W_S . The junction depths (X_{J2}) are the same because the source drain implantation conditions are the same.

To satisfy such assumptions, X_R and W_S should be inversely proportional to each other. This relationship is illustrated in Fig. 3-6. The width of the recessed region (W_R), which is determined in the lithography step, is a varying value according to X_R and W_S conditions. It can be simply expressed as $W_R=L_{POLY} + 2\times W_S$. From this result, it can be seen that the proposed structure has benefit in the lithography step. To explain it more in detail, in case of the conventional LDD MOSFET, the minimum poly gate length is determined by the resolution of lithography. However, the proposed structure adds additional margins of (2×W_S) for the lithography step.

To determine the X_R and W_S , short channel characteristics should be considered. Figure 3-7 and 3-8 show the threshold voltage roll-off and the drain induced barrier lowering (DIBL) characteristics of proposed E-S/D MOSFET for some combinations of the X_R and W_S . DIBL is defined as $V_{TH}=V_{TH}(V_{DS}=0.1V)-V_{TH}(V_{DS}=2.0V)$. The simulations are done for 1) W_S=10nm, X_R=45nm, 2) W_S=15nm, X_R=35nm, 3) W_S=20nm, X_R=25nm, 4) W_S=25nm, X_R=15nm, respectively. To maintain approximately the same effective channel length, X_R is decreased as W_S is increased. The As⁺ (5×10¹⁴ cm⁻², 25keV, 30°) implantation condition for SDE is fixed for all cases. This means that the junction depths (X_{I2} in Fig. 3-6) of SDE are the same for all cases. The threshold voltage roll-off characteristics and the DIBL characteristics worsen as W_S is increased (X_R is decreased). As W_S increases, the junction depth (X_{J1} in Fig. 3-6) of SDE is also increased resulting in the poor short channel behaviors. Figure 3-9 shows the I_{DSAT} characteristics of proposed E-S/D MOSFET for some combinations of X_R and W_S. I_{DSAT} is selected for V_{DS}=V_{GS}-V_T=2.0V. The I_{DSAT} is increased as W_S is increased (X_R is decreased). Furthermore, if W_S X_R, the SDE region nearly has the form of single drain MOSFET.

From these results, it can be seen that there exist tradeoff relationships between the short channel effects and the driving capability according to W_S and X_R . Thus W_S and X_R should be selected within the range of their respective design window. In the thesis work, W_S and X_R are selected 15nm and 30nm respectively.



Fig. 3-6. The relationship between X_R and W_S for a given source drain implantation condition.



Fig. 3-7. Threshold voltage roll-off characteristics of proposed E-S/D MOSFETs according to W_S .



Fig. 3-8. DIBL characteristics of proposed E-S/D MOSFETs according to W_S.



Fig. 3-9. I_{DSAT} characteristics of proposed E-S/D MOSFETs according to W_S.

3.3 Large-Angle-Tilted Implantation for Source Drain Extension

For the source drain extension (SDE) implantation, the proposed ES/D MOSFET make use of the large-angle-tilted implantation technique. Since the proposed structure has inverted sidewall spacers inside the recessed channel, implanted dopants should laterally diffuse to the area beneath the poly gate. If the inverted sidewall width increases, the lateral diffusion of dopants should be increased more further. However, to guarantee the sufficient gate to drain overlap area for the SDE region, the junction depth is also increased at the same time resulting in the degradation of the short channel effect. Such relationship can be relieved by use of large-angle-tilted implantation technique.

Figure 3-10 shows the schematic cross sectional view of the SDE region according to the large-angle-tilted implantations. By increasing the angle θ , sufficient gate to drain overlap area can be more easily achieved and the junction depth is also decreased. Figure 3-11 shows the DIBL characteristics according to the tilt angle, q. The target of effective channel length is fixed to 0.154µm and 0.133µm, respectively. To meet the effective channel length conditions, if the tilt angle (q) is determined, then the implantation energy is also determined. It is shown that the DIBL is degraded as the tilt angle is increased from 0 to 20°. As there exists nitride spacer at the corner of the recessed channel, the shape of SDE region can be affected by the large-angletilted implantations deteriorating the short channel characteristics. However, the DIBL is decreased when the tilt angle is increased from 20° to 45° . It is mainly due to the reduced junction depth that is also indicated in Fig. 3-10. Since the driving current is also decreased as tilt angle is increased, the tilt angle should be selected considering the short channel effects and the driving capability. In this work, tilt angle of 30° and implantation energy of 25keV are selected.



Fig. 3-10. Determination of SDE junction according to the various angle conditions of large-angle-tilted ion implantations.



Fig. 3-11. DIBL characteristics as a function of tilt angle, q. The target of L_{EFF} is fixed to 0.133 and 0.154 μ m, respectively.

3.4 Selectively Doped Channel Structure

The proposed E-S/D MOSFET has selectively doped channel region compared with that of conventional MOSFETs [17-20]. In the proposed MOSFET, only the channel area is exposed to air and the rest of the silicon wafer is covered with the thick blocking oxide layer during the channel implantations. As a result, the channel implantation is implemented only through the exposed silicon area. Figure 3-12 shows the doping profile difference between the uniformly doped channel structure and the selectively doped channel structure.



Fig. 3-12. Doping profile difference between uniformly doped and selectively doped channel structure. In the selectively doped channel, the thick oxide layer acts as a blocking material during the implantations.



Fig. 3-13. Three-dimensional projection plot of the doping concentration for the proposed E-S/D MOSFET.

Figure 3-13 shows the three-dimensional projection plot of the doping concentration for the proposed E-S/D MOSFET. The effective channel length is approximately 0.15 μ m. Unlike the conventional MOSFETs, the channel implantations are performed selectively in the channel region. Thus the doping concentration beneath the heavy source/drain region is not affected by the channel implantations.

The junction capacitance (C_J) between source/drain and substrate can be treated as asymmetrically doped p-n junction. That is, the depletion region extends primarily into the less heavily doped side (substrate side). Thus the C_J

is determined by only one of the doping concentrations [56]. For a p^{\dagger} -n junction, N_a N_d and C_J is proportional to $N_d^{1/2}$. For a n^{+} -p junction, N_a N_d and C_J is proportional to $N_a^{1/2}$, where N_d is the doping concentration of the donor ions and N_a is the doping concentration of the acceptor ions.

From Fig. 3-12, it can be seen that the junction capacitance of uniformly doped structure is directly related to the channel doping concentrations. As the MOSFETs have been scaled down to deep submicron regime, the doping concentration of channel region should be increased in order to suppress the short channel effects. Consequently, the uniformly doped channel structure suffers from increased junction capacitance problem deteriorating the device performance. On the contrary, the selectively doped channel structure has reduced junction capacitance because the doping concentration beneath the source/drain is not affected by the channel implantations.

To investigate the effect of selectively doped channel on the electric field, the proposed E-S/D structures with different channel doping profiles are analyzed. As previously described in the fabrication process (Figs. 3-1 and 3-2), the proposed structure make use of nitride sidewall spacers for the inverted sidewall spacers. The nitride sidewall can be selectively removed by particular solution such as H_3PO_4 . Note that the thick blocking oxide layer is not removed during the process. By utilizing such properties, different selectively doped channel profiles can be achieved. Figure 3-14 shows the process for achieving the different channel profiles. Note that the fabrication process is modified compared with that of Fig. 3-2. In Fig. 3-14, the inverted sidewall spacers are formed prior to the channel implantations. W_{RN} is the width of removable nitride spacer and W_S is the width of final nitride spacer. If W_{RN} is

kept larger than W_s, more selectively doped channel can be achieved. On the contrary, if W_{RN} is smaller than W_S, channel doping profile tends to be more like that of the uniformly doped case. In the simulations, W_{RN} values are selected 35nm, 25nm and 15nm, respectively. Figure 3-15 shows the two dimensional electric field contours of the proposed E-S/D MOSFETs according to W_{RN}. The contours of electric field are plotted from 0.22MV/cm in steps of 0.05MV/cm for a drain bias of 2.5V. V_{GS}=1.3V for the worst case conditions and $L_{EFF}=0.154\mu m$. As W_{RN} is increased, it can be seen that the magnitude of the electric field is decreased. However, the selection of W_{RN} should be carefully determined considering the width of recessed channel region (W_R) . Since the channel implantation is performed through the open area (W_R -2 W_{RN}), the decreased ratio of (W_R -2 W_{RN})/ W_R can aggravate the punchthrough phenomenon due to the insufficient channel implantations. As the device shrinks to deep submicron region, W_R is also scaled down proportional to the respective channel length. If W_{RN} is kept the same value regardless of the channel lengths, the ratio of (W_R-2W_{RN})/W_R eventually becomes too small causing the short channel problems. To prevent such deterioration of the short channel effects, the W_{RN} should also be adjusted for the respective channel lengths. Consequently, although the selectively doped channel is advantageous for reducing the lateral electric field in the drain side, short channel characteristics should also be carefully considered.



Fig. 3-14. The process for achieving different channel profiles. Removable nitride sidewall spacers are used.



Fig. 3-15. Two-dimensional electric field contours for the proposed E-S/D MOSFETs. $V_{DS}=2.5V$, $V_{GS}=1.3V$. $L_{EFF}=0.154\mu$ m, (a) $W_{RN}=15$ nm, (b) $W_{RN}=25$ nm and (c) $W_{RN}=35$ nm.

Chapter 4 Results and Discussion

In this chapter, the electrical characteristics of proposed E-S/D MOSFET are extensively investigated. Conventional LDD and SEG MOSFETs are also analyzed for comparison and discussion. For the analysis, two dimensional process and device simulators TSUPREM-4 and MEDICI are used [53],[55].

4.1 Models Used in the Simulations

Some of important models are described that were used for the device simulations. Incomplete ionization effect, band-to-band tunneling, mobility models are described more in detail.

4.1.1 Incomplete Ionization of the Impurities

The impurities are implanted to form n or p type semiconductors. Usually, it is assumed that all the implanted impurities are fully ionized during the device simulations. However the ionized donor density (N_D^+) and the ionized acceptor density (N_A^-) has dependence on temperature. According to [57], the dependence are modeled using Fermi-Dirac statistics with the appropriate factors for conduction and valence band degeneracy and with the introduction of quasi-Fermi levels for electrons and holes. N_D^+ and N_A^- can be described as [55], [57]

$$N_D^+ = \frac{N_D}{1 + GCB \exp\left(\frac{E_{Fn} - E_D}{kT}\right)}$$
(4-1)

$$N_{A}^{-} = \frac{N_{A}}{1 + GVB \exp\left(\frac{E_{A} - E_{Fp}}{kT}\right)}$$
(4-2)

where

 N_D : net compensated n-type doping.

N_A : net compensated p-type doping.

 E_A : acceptor impurity level.

E_D : donor impurity level.

E_{Fn} : electron quasi-Fermi level

 E_{Fp} : hole quasi-Fermi level

GCB : degeneracy factors for the conduction bands.

GVB : degeneracy factors for the valence bands.

In the MEDICI [55] models, the incomplete ionization of impurities are modeled based on the equations stated above. By default, GCB and GVB are selected 2 and 4 for the silicon devices. And $E_D=E_C$ -EDB and $E_A=EAB+E_V$. Where EDB is the donor ionization energy referenced to the conduction band energy and EAB is the acceptor ionization energy referenced to the valence band energy. By default EDB and EAB are selected 0.044eV and 0.045eV for the silicon devices. Fig. 4-1 shows the I_{DS} -V_{DS} characteristics of a sample E-S/D MOSFET with fully ionized case and incomplete ionized case.



Fig. 4-1. I_{DS}-V_{DS} characteristics of a sample E-S/D MOSFET. The solid line and the dashed line indicate the cases when fully ionization of the impurities and incomplete ionization are assumed.

4.1.2 Band-to-Band Tunneling Model

The phenomenon of a valence band electron tunneling through the forbidden energy gap to the conduction band is known as band-to-band tunneling. It occurs in regions of high electric field where the local band bending causes the tunneling probability to become significant. In the model used by simulation has the form [55],
$$G^{BB} = A.BTBT \frac{E^2}{E_g^{1/2}} \cdot \exp\left(-B.BTBT \frac{E_g^{3/2}}{E}\right)$$
(4-3)

where,

A.BTBT =
$$3.5 \times 10^{21}$$
 eV^{1/2}/cm-s-V²
B.BTBT= 22.5×10^{6} V/cm-(eV)^{3/2}

4.1.3 Mobility Models

In the simulations, Lombardi surface mobility model is used which is an empirical model that combines mobility expressions for semiconductorinsulator interfaces and for bulk silicon [58]. The basic equation is given by Mathiessen's rule:

$$\boldsymbol{m}_{S} = \left[\frac{1}{\boldsymbol{m}_{ac}} + \frac{1}{\boldsymbol{m}_{b}} + \frac{1}{\boldsymbol{m}_{sr}}\right]^{-1}$$
(4-4)

where

 μ_S : total electron or hole mobility accounting for surface effects

 μ_{ac} : mobility degraded by surface acoustical phonon scattering

 μ_b : mobility in bulk silicon

 μ_{sr} : mobility degraded by surface roughness scattering.

For the parallel mobility calculations, Caughey-Thomas Expression for both electron and hole mobility is used [59]. This model can account for effects due to high electric field in the direction of current flow. In this model, the carrier drift velocity saturates at high fields. The model can be described as,

$$\mathbf{m}_{h} = \frac{\mathbf{m}_{5,n}}{\begin{pmatrix} \mathbf{\hat{e}} \\ \mathbf{\hat{e}}$$

where $\mu_{S,n}$ and $\mu_{S,p}$ are the low field mobilities and v_h^{sat} and v_p^{sat} are the saturation velocities for electrons and holes, respectively. E_{\parallel} is the component of electric field paralled to the current direction. EBETAN and BETAP are the fitting parameters that can be obtained from the experimental data taken in the appropriate experimental conditions. Values for v_n^{sat} and v_p^{sat} are computed by default from the following expression. In these simulations BETAN=2.0, BETAP=1.0, $v_n^{sat}=1.035\times10^7$ cm/s, and $v_p^{sat}=1.035\times10^7$ cm/s are selected for the silicon material [55].

$$v_{n,p}^{sat}(T) = \frac{2.4 \times 10^7}{1 + 0.8 \cdot \exp\left(\frac{T}{600}\right)}$$
(4-7)

4.2 Design of Conventional LDD MOSFET

Conventional n-channel LDD MOSFETs with varying doping concentration are analyzed in comparison with the proposed E-S/D MOSFET. HL, ML and LL represent LDD MOSFETs with SDE implantation dose of $5 \times 10^{14} \text{ cm}^{-2}$, $1 \times 10^{14} \text{ cm}^{-2}$, $5 \times 10^{13} \text{ cm}^{-2}$, respectively. Very low acceleration energy of 10keV is used for the SDE implantation. The main fabrication steps for the conventional LDD MOSFETs are shown in Fig. 4-2. The SDE implantation is performed after the formation of a thin offset spacer. By varying the thickness of the offset spacer, the effective channel length can be adjusted to have the same value regardless of the SDE implantation dose as shown in Fig. 4-3. The nitride sidewall is formed to have final sidewall thickness of 80nm. After the final sidewall formation, As^+ (5×10¹⁵ cm⁻², 20keV) implantation is performed for n^+ source/drain regions [60]. The process conditions are kept the same to those of the E-S/D MOSFETs for fair comparison. The detailed process conditions are listed in Table 4-1. For the analysis of their electrical characteristics, two-dimensional process simulator TSUPREM-4 [53] and device simulator MEDICI [55] are used.

Channel V_T Implantation : BF_2^+ , $6 \times 10^{12} cm^{-2}$, 90keV Channel P_T Implantation : B⁺, 4 ×10^{12} cm^{-2}, 45keV

Gate oxidation (T_{OX}) : 50

Poly-Si deposition & Gate patterning (lithography)

Offset sidewall spacer deposition

Source Drain Extension implantation : As⁺, 0.5, 1, 5 ×10¹⁴ cm⁻², 10 keV

Sidewall spacer formation (Nitride, 80nm)

Heavy source drain implantation : As⁺, 5 ×10¹⁵cm⁻², 20keV

Annealing : RTA, 1000 , 10sec

Fig. 4-2. Main fabrication steps of the conventional LDD MOSFETs.

Table 4-1. Process parameters of the conventional LDD MOSFETs.

Process Parameter	HL	ML	LL
Channel Implantation	B^+ , 4×10 ¹² , 45keV BF_2^+ , 6×10 ¹² , 90keV		
Gate Oxide Thickness (T _{ox})	50		
Offset Sidewall Width (W _{OFF})	15nm	7.5nm	5nm
SDE Implanatation	$5 \times 10^{14} \text{cm}^{-2}$	$1 \times 10^{14} \text{cm}^{-2}$	$5 \times 10^{13} \text{cm}^{-2}$
Final Sidewall Width (W _s)	80nm		
Poly Gate Length (L _{POLY})	0.19µm		
Effective Channel Length	0.1542µm	0.1541µm	0.1541µm
Annealing	1000 , 10sec		



Fig. 4-3. Control of the effective channel length by help of the offset spacer in LDD MOSFET.

4.3 GIDL Characteristics of E-S/D and LDD MOSFETs

The Gate-Induced Drain Leakage (GIDL) current is one of major leakage current observed in off-state MOSFETs. The influence of SDE dose on the GIDL characteristics are analyzed. Figure 4-4 shows the GIDL characteristics of the LDD MOSFETs according to the SDE dose. The GIDL current is obtained from MEDICI simulation that includes band-to-band tunneling effect [28]. LL1 and LL2 represent LDD MOSFETs with SDE implantation dose of 3×10^{13} cm⁻², 1×10^{13} cm⁻², respectively. As reported by Y-H Kim *et al.*[28], increment of the SDE implantation dose increases the GIDL current due to the increased maximum electric field. It is shown that the GIDL current is



Fig. 4-4. GIDL currents for LDD MOSFETs as a function of drain voltage. $V_{GS}=0V$. HL: 5×10¹⁴ cm⁻², ML: 1×10¹⁴ cm⁻², LL: 5×10¹³ cm⁻², LL1: 3×10¹³ cm⁻², LL2: 1×10¹³ cm⁻².

decreased more rapidly for the lower dose of LDD MOSFETs. In other words, the variation of GIDL current is more severe in case of lower dose LDD MOSFETs.

Figure 4-5 shows the lateral electric field profiles at 2nm away from the SiO_2/Si interface for the LDD MOSFETs. It is known that the surface field at the point of maximum band-to-band tunneling is proportional to $V_{GD}/3T_{OX}$, where V_{GD} is the voltage difference between V_G and V_D and T_{OX} is the oxide thickness at the dominant tunneling point in the overlap region [36]. Therefore increase in T_{OX} reduces the vertical electric field in the gate-to-drain



Fig. 4-5. Simulated lateral electric field profiles for LDD devices at 2nm away from the SiO₂/Si interface. V_{DS} =6.0V and V_{GS} =0V.



Fig. 4-6. GIDL currents for HL according to the gate oxide thickness (T_{OX}). V_{GS}=0V. SDE dose: 5×10^{14} cm⁻² (HL).

overlap region resulting in the lower GIDL current. Figure 4-6 shows the GIDL current of HL according to the gate oxide thickness (T_{OX}). It is clearly shown that by increasing T_{OX} , the GIDL current generation can be effectively suppressed. However, increasing T_{OX} significantly degrades the short channel characteristics and driving capability. As shown in Fig. 4-5, the location of the maximum electric field is shifted toward the drain side for LL2. As the distance between the point of maximum electric field and the poly gate edge is increased, the effective T_{OX} of LDD MOSFET is increased. This has an effect of reducing the electric field at the dominant tunneling point without physically increasing T_{OX} . As a result, the GIDL current is reduced. From the



Fig. 4-7. GIDL currents for E-S/D and LDD MOSFETs as a function of drain voltage. $V_{GS}=0V$. HL: 5×10^{14} cm⁻², ML: 1×10^{14} cm⁻², LL: 5×10^{13} cm⁻².

results, decreasing the SDE dose causes the electric field to be decreased and eventually leads to the reduction of GIDL current. Furthermore, if the SDE dose is decreased below 3×10^{13} cm⁻², the point of maximum electric field is likely to be shifted toward the drain side resulting in the increment of the effective T_{OX}. This makes the variation of the GIDL current much larger for the lower dose LDD MOSFETs.

Figure 4-7 shows the GIDL characteristics of the proposed E-S/D and the conventional LDD MOSFETs. The poly gate length is 0.19µm. As the SDE dose is increased, GIDL current is also increased. On the other hand, the E S/D MOSFET shows approximately one orders of magnitude lower GIDL

current than that of HL having the same SDE implantation dose condition $(5 \times 10^{14} \text{ cm}^{-2})$.

The two-dimensional electric field and doping concentration contours for HL and the E-S/D MOSFET are compared in Fig. 4-8. The contours of electric field are plotted from 0.5MV/cm in steps of 0.2MV/cm for a drain bias of 6V. The contours of doping concentration for arsenic are plotted from $1 \times 10^{18} \text{ cm}^{-3}$ to 1×10^{20} cm⁻³ for both structures. Although the SDE implantation dose condition is the same for both cases, the SDE region of E-S/D MOSFET has a different doping distribution from that of HL. Because the peak of SDE implantation is positioned farther away from the surface in case of ES/D, the SDE region has more gradually varying doping distribution compared to that of HL resulting in the reduced electric field as shown in Fig. 4-8. It is known that most of the band-to-band tunneling occurs at the surface of the high field region where the gate overlaps the drain. From Fig. 4-8(b), the E-S/D MOSFET has its peak field position farther away from the poly gate edge as indicated by the bold arrow. Figure 4-9 shows the lateral electric field profiles at 2nm away from the SiO₂/Si interface for the proposed E-S/D and LDD MOSFETs. It is shown that the peak of electric field is located more toward the drain side in case of the E-S/D MOSFETs.

As shown in Figs. 4-8 and 4-9, the high field region of the E-S/D MOSFET is shifted more toward the drain side compared to those of LDD MOSFETs. It makes the effective T_{OX} of E-S/D MOSFET larger than those of LDD MOSFETs at the point of the maximum field as shown in Fig. 4-10. This has an effect of reducing the electric field at the dominant tunneling point without physically increasing T_{OX} . Consequently, the GIDL current is reduced.



Fig. 4-8. Contours of electric field and doping concentration for (a) HL and (b) E-S/D MOSFET. $V_{DS}=6.0V$ and $V_{GS}=0V$.



Fig. 4-9. Simulated lateral electric field profiles for E-S/D and LDD devices at 2nm away from the SiO₂/Si interface. V_{DS} =6.0V and V_{GS} =0V. The insert shows the region where the maximum electric field appears.



Fig. 4-10. Cross sectional schematic of conventional LDD MOSFET and the proposed E-S/D MOSFET showing the different location of the maximum electric field. The effective T_{OX} is increased for the E S/D MOSFET.

Figure 4-11 shows the GIDL current of HL and proposed ES/D structure according to the gate oxide thickness (T_{OX}). Solid symbol lines in the figure indicate the E-S/D MOSFET and the HL with the same conditions (SDE implantation dose: 5×10^{14} cm⁻² and T_{OX} : 5nm). It is shown that the GIDL current is decreased as T_{OX} is increased. Note that the E-S/D structure can suppress the GIDL current more effectively without physically increasing T_{OX} . Since the increased T_{OX} significantly degrades the short channel characteristics and the driving capability, the use of ES/D structure can be advantageous for suppressing the GIDL current.



Fig. 4-11. GIDL currents for HL and E-S/D MOSFET according to gate oxide thickness (T_{OX}). V_{GS}=0V. SDE dose: 5×10¹⁴ cm⁻² (HL, E-S/D).

4.4 Short Channel Characteristics

Figure 4-12 shows the Drain-Induced Barrier Lowering (DIBL) characteristics of the E-S/D and the LDD MOSFETs. DIBL is defined as $V_{TH}=V_{TH}(V_{DS}=0.1V)-V_{TH}(V_{DS}=2.0V)$. It is shown that ML, LL and the E-S/D have the similar DIBL characteristics. In the LDD devices, the increase of the SDE dose results in the deterioration of DIBL characteristics. Although the E-S/D device has the same SDE implantation dose as HL, the more gradually varying SDE doping concentration of the E-S/D device reduces the DIBL.



Fig. 4-12. DIBL characteristics of E-S/D and LDD MOSFETs.



Fig. 4-13. Threshold voltage roll-off characteristics of E-S/D and LDD MOSFETs.

Threshold voltage roll-off characteristics of the E-S/D and the LDD MOSFETs are shown in Fig. 4-13. The LDD devices show V_{TH} roll-off characteristics similar to that of the ES/D device. As the channel length is scaled down to near 0.15 μ m, V_{TH} roll-off characteristics degrade slightly in the E-S/D device. It can be attributed to the selectively doped channel as shown in Fig. 3-3. From the figure, there exists the p-type doping concentration gradient between region (I) and (II) that results in the decrease of threshold voltage near channel edges. However, the amount of threshold voltage roll-off ($V_{TH}=V_{TH}(L_C\cong0.35 \ \mu$ m)- $V_{TH}(L_C\cong0.15 \ \mu$ m)) of the E-S/D device differs from that of LLs no more than 0.0065V.

Figure 4-14 shows the breakdown characteristics of E-S/D and LDD MOSFETs. Breakdown voltage (BV_{DSS}) is defined as the drain voltage that drain current reaches at 0.1nA/ μ m at gate bias of 0V. The breakdown voltages are obtained from MEDICI simulation that includes impact ionization and bandgap narrowing effect [55]. For LDD devices, increasing the SDE dose results in the decrease of breakdown voltage. However, the E-S/D device which has the same SDE dose condition (5×10¹⁴ cm⁻²) as that of HL, shows higher breakdown voltages. In case of E-S/D MOSFET, selectively doped channel reduces both the impact ionization near drain and the emitter injection efficiency of the parasitic bipolar transistor near the source [61]. The simulation result also verifies such fact that the breakdown of ES/D device is more effectively suppressed.



Fig. 4-14. Breakdown characteristics of E-S/D and LDD MOSFETs.

4.5 Current Driving Capability

Figure 4-15 shows I_{DS} - V_{DS} characteristics of the proposed E-S/D and LDD MOSFETs. The parasitic resistance and impurity scattering should be minimized for enhanced driving capability. Low energy implantation increases the sheet resistance of LDD devices due to the low-activation effect [26]. Despite of increase in the GIDL current, a larger SDE implantation dose is required to improve the driving current. The E-S/D MOSFET has the largest I_{DSAT} values among the structures investigated. This can be attributed to the



Fig. 4-15. I_{DS}-V_{DS} characteristics of E-S/D and LDD MOSFETs.

elevation of the SDE region. Relatively high energy(25keV) implantation is performed to form the SDE region by large-angle-tilted implantation. Consequently, very low energy implantation can be avoided. Figure 416 shows the maximum transconductance ($g_{n,max}$) characteristics of the ES/D and LDD MOSFETs. The transconductance is obtained under the drain bias of 2.0V. Figure 4-17 shows the I_{DSAT} characteristics of the ES/D and LDD MOSFETs. $V_{DS}=2.0V$ and $V_{GS}-V_T=2.0V$. The trends of the curves are very similar to those of $g_{n,max}$.



Fig. 4-16. $G_{m,max}$ characteristics of E-S/D and LDD MOSFETs.



Fig. 4-17. I_{DSAT} characteristics of E-S/D and LDD MOSFETs. $V_{DS}=V_{GS}-V_T=2.0V.$

4.6 Hot-Carrier Characteristics

To investigate the hot-carrier characteristics, the lateral electric field distribution is compared. Conventional method for analyzing the substrate current is based on the impact ionization model and has the problem of overestimating the substrate current [55]. Therefore, existing papers also regard the simulated substrate current values not as exact solutions. The simulations are mainly used for design guidelines and comparisons between the different structures with the same simulation conditions [14]. In the simulations, the energy balance equations are used for analyzing the hot-carrier characteristics [55],[62]. The energy balance equations are used for modeling the local carrier heating when there are high, spatial and rapidly varying electric fields.

Figure 4-18 shows the lateral electric field distribution of ES/D and LDD MOSFETs. For the maximum substrate current condition (worst condition), the drain is biased at 2.5V and the gate at 1.3V. The LDD devices show similar lateral electric field distribution under worst conditions. However the E-S/D device shows significantly reduced (~25%) lateral electric field compared to those of LDD devices. It can be attributed to the selectively doped channel profile and gradually varying doping profile of SDE region. Figure 4-19 shows the contours of electric fields for the three LDD (LL, ML, HL) and ES/D devices. The contours of electric field are plotted from 0.25MV/cm in steps of 0.04MV/cm for V_{DS} =2.5V and V_{GS} =1.3V. As the SDE implantation dose is increased, the electric field is gradually increasing. It is clearly seen that E-S/D device has much lower electric field under worst case condition.



Fig. 418. Lateral electric field distribution of E-S/D and LDD MOSFETs. V_{DS} =2.5V and V_{GS} =1.3V.



Fig. 419. Contours of electric field for (a) LL and (b) ML. V_{DS} =2.5V and V_{GS} =1.3V. (continued)



Fig. 4-19. Contours of electric field for (c) HL and (d) E-S/D. $V_{DS}\!\!=\!\!2.5V$ and $V_{GS}\!\!=\!\!1.3V\!.$

4.7 E-S/D MOSFET with Selective Epitaxial Growth: Design & Electrical Characteristics

E-S/D MOSFETs with Selective Epitaxial Growth (SEG) Process (here after SEG MOSFETs) are designed for comparison with the proposed E-S/D MOSFET. Figure 4-20 shows the fabrication process of the SEG MOSFET. The offset spacers are used for the control of the effective channel length as previously shown in Fig. 43. The epi-layer is grown to have thickness of 80nm under 850 , 1.2min [14]. The SDE implantation is performed prior to the epitaxial growth of silicon. The facet angle is about 28°, corresponding to {113} growth plane [32]. The epi thickness at the nitride sidewall spacer edge was taken as 30nm if the epi layer thickness at plain Si surface is assumed to be 100nm [32]. Applying such relationships, the epi thickness at the sidewall spacer edge can be calculated regardless of the epi layer thickness. The heavy source drain implantation is performed to have the same junction depth with that of conventional LDD MOSFETs. Several SEG structures are used for the simulations as shown in Fig. 4-21. Large-angle-tilted implantation for the heavy source/drain is adopted for SEG MOSFET with dual (2nd) sidewall spacers and its influences on the device performance are analyzed. All the SEG structures are designed to have the same junction depth (referenced from the channel interface) regardless of the epi-layer thickness and the angle (θ) of tilted implantations. The process parameters of the simulated SEG MOSFETs are listed in Table 4-2.

Channel V_T Implantation : BF_2^+ , $6 \times 10^{12} cm^{-2}$, 90keV Channel P_T Implantation : B⁺, 4 ×10^{12} cm^{-2}, 45keV

Gate oxidation (T_{OX}) : 50

Poly-Si deposition & Gate patterning (lithography)

Offset sidewall spacer deposition (W_{OFF})

Source Drain Extension implantation : As^+ , 5 ×10¹⁴cm⁻², 10keV

Sidewall spacer formation (Nitride, 80nm)

Selective Epitaxial Growth (SEG) (850 , 1.2min)

Heavy source drain implantation : As⁺, 5 ×10¹⁵cm⁻², 60keV

Annealing : RTA, 1000 , 10sec

Fig. 4-20. Main fabrication steps of the conventional SEG MOSFETs



Fig. 4-21. SEG MOSFET structures used for the simulation. (a) conventional LDD structure (HL), (b) conventional SEG structure with facet (HL-S), (c) SEG structure with dual (2nd) spacers used (HL-SD), (d) structure (c) with large-angle-tilted n⁺ S/D implantation (HL-SDT).

Table 4-2. Process parameters of the simulated SEG MOSFETs.

Process Parameter	HL-S	HL-SD	HL-SDT
Channel Implantation	B^+ , 4×10 ¹² , 45keV BF_2^+ , 6×10 ¹² , 90keV		
Gate Oxide Thickness (T _{ox})	50		
Offset Sidewall Width (W _{OFF})	15nm		
SDE Implantation	5×10 ¹⁴ cm ⁻² , 10keV		
S/D Implanatation	5×10 ¹⁵ cm ⁻²	5×10 ¹⁵ cm ⁻²	$5 \times 10^{15} \text{ cm}^{-2}$, ($\theta = 30^{\circ}, 45^{\circ}$)
Final Sidewall Width (W _s)	80nm		
Epi-layer Thickness	80nm (850 , 1.2min)		
Effective Channel Length	0.1538µm	0.1538µm	0.1538µm
Poly Gate Length (L _{POLY})	0.19µm		
Annealing	1000 , 10sec		



Fig. 4-22. Removal of the epi-layer by ETCH command. Etch all material to the left or right of the line between (X_1, Y_1) and (X_2, Y_2) is possible.

In the TSUPREM-4 simulations, epitaxial growth of Si is supported for the simulations. However, the selective epitaxial growth of Si is not supported. Epi-layers are formed on the material regardless of the material whether it is crystalline Si or not. And the facets are not automatically generated. To take the facets into account, the ETCH command is used to construct the real shape of the SEG MOSFETs. The epi-layer is partly removed by ETCH command as shown in Fig. 4-22. In TSUPREM-4, it is possible to etch all material to the left or right of the line between (X_1, Y_1) and (X_2, Y_2) .

Figure 4-23 and 4-24 show the threshold voltage roll-off and DIBL characteristics of SEG MOSFET and conventional LDD MOSFETs, respectively. The threshold voltage roll-off characteristics show very similar trends each other. DIBL is degraded for HL-S due to the facet effect. HL-SD has the lowest DIBL values among the structures investigated meaning that the dual spacers can be used to fully suppress the short channel degradations. In case of HL-SDT, DIBL increases with increasing tilt angle θ .



Fig. 4-23. Threshold voltage roll-off characteristics of HL and SEG MOSFETs



Fig. 4-24. DIBL characteristics of HL and SEG MOSFETs.



Fig. 4-25. G_{m,max} characteristics of HL and SEG MOSFETs.



Fig. 4-26. I_{DSAT} characteristics of HL and SEG MOSFETs.

Figure 4-25 and 4-26 show the $G_{m,max}$ and I_{DSAT} characteristics of HL and SEG MOSFETs, respectively. Although HL-S shows poor short channel characteristics, the driving current is increased due to increased junction depth near channel edges. SEG MOSFET with dual spacers (HL-SD) has the poorest driving capability among the structures simulated. This is because the HL-SD covers the facet region resulting in the increased spacer width. In case of HL-SDT, driving current increases with increasing the tilt angle, θ .

The impact of facet on the short channel effect was not severe due to the sufficiently large width of the sidewall spacer width (W_S). HL-SD shows excellent immunity against the short channel effects but has poor driving capability. It is shown that the driving capability of HL-SD device can be enhanced by adopting the large-angle-tilted implantation method.

Figure 4-27 shows the GIDL currents of HL-S, the proposed E-S/D MOSFET and the conventional LDD MOSFETs. The HL-S shows the largest GIDL current among the simulated structures. Although the current driving capability is increased for HL-S, GIDL current is also increased showing the significant trade-off relationships.

Simulated lateral electric field profiles for HL-S, HL and the E-S/D devices are shown in Fig. 4-28. Unlike the E-S/D device, HL-S shows similar lateral electric field profiles to that of HLs. Such fact indicates that the SDE implantation method plays major role in the determination of GIDL current.



Fig. 4-27. GIDL current for HL-S compared with those of E-S/D and LDD MOSFETs as a function of drain voltage. $V_{GS}=0V$. HL: 5×10^{14} cm⁻², ML: 1×10^{14} cm⁻², LL: 5×10^{13} cm⁻².



Fig. 428. Simulated lateral electric field profiles for HL-S, HL and ES/D devices at 2nm away from the SiO₂/Si interface. V_{DS} =6.0V and V_{GS} =0V.

4.8 Junction Capacitance

The junction capacitance between the source/drain and the substrate can be treated as that of p-n junction diodes. The p-n junction diodes differ from a standard capacitor in that the diode capacitance monotonically decreases with increasing reverse bias. The junction capacitance can be described by analogy to be [56],

$$C_{J} = eA \left[\frac{q}{2e(V_{0} - V)} \frac{N_{d}N_{a}}{N_{d} + N_{a}} \right]^{1/2} = \frac{K_{s}e_{0}A}{W}$$
(4-1)

where W is the depletion layer width. From the equation, C_J can be reduced if W is increased. In case of an asymmetrically doped junction, the depletion layer extends primarily into the less heavily doped side, and the capacitance is determined by only one of the doping concentrations. Increasing the reverse bias or decreasing the doping concentration at the less heavily doped part of the p-n junction, C_J is decreased.

Figure 4-29 shows the reverse-bias junction capacitance of HL and ES/D MOSFET. X indicates the distance from the center of the channel. As the reverse bias applied to n^+ -p junction is increased, the junction capacitance is decreased. For X=1 μ m, the ES/D MOSFET shows approximately 0.5 times lower value of capacitance than HL at reverse bias of 0V. Due to the selectively doped channel structure, E-S/D device offers reduced junction capacitance and the device switching speed can be effectively enhanced.



Fig. 4-29. Junction capacitance of HL. X indicates the distance from the center of the poly-gate. The poly-gate length is 0.19 μ m. (continued)


Fig. 4-29. Junction capacitance of the proposed E-S/D MOSFET.

Chapter 5. Conclusion

In this thesis work, a new self-aligned E-S/D structure is proposed and its electrical characteristics are analyzed. The proposed structure has simple fabrication steps compared with those of the previously reported E-S/D MOSFETs. The self-aligned gate is formed on the recessed channel so that the self-alignment is realized for both the source/drain and the gate on the recessed channel. Only one lithography step is needed for the recessed channel and gate definition making the process much simpler. Furthermore, the limitation of lithography process due to the minimum gate length is less severe in case of the proposed fabrication method. Since the poly gate is formed after the inverted sidewall spacers are formed inside the recessed channel region, there is no need to define the gate length in the lithography step. The recessed channel area is defined in the lithography step instead of the gate area.

The proposed structure is elevated in the source drain extension region so that very low energy implantation, which can be the cause of the lowactivation effect, can be avoided. Large-angle-tilted implantation is performed to guarantee the sufficient gate-to-drain overlap area and to decrease the junction depth. Because the peak of SDE implantation is located farther away from the surface in case of ES/D device, the SDE region has more gradually varying doping distribution compared to that of LDD MOSFETs (HL) resulting in the reduced electric field.

The proposed structure has selectively doped channel doping profiles. From the simulation results, it is shown that both the lateral electric field and the junction capacitance are reduced. Since the channel implantation is performed selectively through the open area (W_R-2W_{RN}), the channel doping profiles can be controlled according to the removable nitride sidewall width (W_{RN}). Two dimensional device simulations verify that the lateral electric field is reduced as W_{RN} is increased. However, W_{RN} should be carefully selected considering the recessed channel width (W_R), so that the insufficient channel implantations can be prevented. As the device scales down, the inevitably increased channel doping concentration causes the junction capacitance to be increased in the uniformly doped channel structures. On the other hand, the selectively doped channel structure has reduced junction capacitance because the doping concentration beneath the source/drain is not affected by the channel implantations.

From the GIDL simulations, the E-S/D MOSFET showed approximately one orders of magnitude lower GIDL current than that of LDD MOSFET (HL) having the same SDE implantation dose condition $(5 \times 10^{14} \text{ cm}^{-2})$ while maintaining the higher saturation current levels. The main reason for reduction of the GIDL current is the decreased electric field at the point of the maximum band-to-band tunneling as the peak electric field is shifted toward the drain side. Simulation results show that the position of the peak electric field plays major role in the determination of GIDL current.

From the short channel effect simulations, the Drain-Induced Barrier Lowering (DIBL) and Breakdown characteristics are enhanced compared with those of LDD devices. The selectively doped channel reduces both the impact ionization near drain and the emitter injection efficiency of the parasitic bipolar transistor near the source. The gradually varying doping distribution of SDE region further reduces the lateral electric field at drain side suppressing the short channel effects. The V_T roll-off characteristics were slightly degraded due to the lack of impurities near the channel edges. However the difference between the E-S/D and LDD devices was comparable.

From the hot-carrier simulation results, the lateral electric field of the E S/D device is significantly reduced compared with those of conventional LDD devices under worst bias condition. The selectively doped channel combined with the gradually varying SDE region helps to reduce the electric field near the drain edge alleviating the impact ionization rate.

Various kinds of SEG MOSFET structures are also included for comparison and discussion. The conventional SEG MOSFET with facet is designed based on the conventional LDD MOSFET. Although the facet has the effect of aggravating the short channel effects (SCE), the degradation of SCE was less severe if the sidewall width was kept sufficiently large. The SEG MOSFET which has dual sidewall spacers combined with the large-angle-tilted n⁺ implantation technique is also proposed and analyzed. From the simulation results, the proposed scheme can be beneficial for improving the device performance in the dual spacer SEG MOSFETs without sacrificing the short channel characteristics. In the GIDL simulation, unlike the proposed ES/D MOSFET, SEG MOSFETs showed larger GIDL currents compared with those of conventional LDD MOSFETs with the same SDE implantation dose conditions. Since the SDE region of SEG MOSFETs is formed the same way as that of LDD MOSFETs, they showed similar GIDL current characteristics.

REFERENCE

- R.R. Troutman, "VLSI Limitations from Drain-Induced Barrier Lowering," IEEE Trans. Elec. Dev., vol. 26, no. 4, pp. 461-469, Apr. 1979.
- [2] T. Skotnicki, G. Merckel, and T. Pedron, "Analytical Study of Punchthrough in Buried Channel P-MOSFET's," IEEE Trans. Elec. Dev., vol. 36, no. 4, pp. 690-705, Apr. 1989.
- [3] C. Hu, S. Tam, and K. Terril, "Hot Electron Induced MOSFET Degradation Model, Monitor, and Improvement," IEEE Trans. Elec. Dev., vol. 32, no. 2, pp. 375-384, 1985.
- [4] P. Heremans, R. Bellens, and H. Maes, "Consistent Model for the Hot-Carrier Degradation in N-Channel and P-Channel MOSFET's," IEEE Trans. Elec. Dev., vol. 35, no. 12, pp. 2194-2209, Dec. 1988.
- [5] K.N. Quader, C. Li, R. Tu, E. Rosenbaum, P. Ko, and C. Hu, "A New Approach for Simulation of Circuit Degradation Due to Hot-Electron Damage in NMOSFETs," Int. Electron Device Meet. Tech. Dig., pp. 337-340, Dec. 1991.
- [6] J.G. Ruch, "Electron Dynamics in Short Channel Field-Effect Transistors," IEEE Trans. Elec. Dev., pp. 652-654, May 1972.
- [7] T. Kobayashi, K. Saito, "Two-Dimensional Analysis of Velocity Overshoot Effects in Ultrashort-Channel Si MOSFET's," IEEE Trans. Elec. Dev., vol. 32, no. 4, pp. 788-792, Apr. 1985.
- [8] K. Ohe, T. Yabu, S. Kugo, H. Umimoto, and S. Odanaka, "The Inverse-Narrow-Width Effect of LOCOS Isolated n-MOSFET in a High-Concentration p-Well," IEEE Elec. Dev. Lett., pp. 636-638, Dec. 1992.

- [9] H. Iwai, "CMOS Technology Year 2010 and Beyond," IEEE Journal of Solid-State Circuits, vol. 34, no. 3, pp. 357-366, Mar. 1999.
- [10] S. Thompson, P. Packan and M. Bohr, "MOS Scaling: Transistor Challenges for the 21st Century," Intel Technology Journal Q3'98, pp. 1-19, 1998.
- [11] M. Ono, M. Saito, T. Yoshitomi, C. Fiegna, T. Ohguro, and H. Iwai, "A 40nm Gate Length n-MOSFET," IEEE Trans. Elec. Dev., vol. 42, no. 10, pp. 1822-1830, Oct. 1995.
- [12] W. Lynch, "Self-Aligned Contact Schemes for Source-Drains in Submicron Devices," Int. Electron Device Meet. Tech. Dig., p. 354, Dec. 1987.
- [13] H. Shin, A.F. Tasch Jr., T.J. Bordelon, and C.M. Maziar, "MOSFET Drain Engineering Analysis for Deep-Submicrometer Dimensions: A New Structural Approach," IEEE Trans. Elec. Dev. Vol. 39, no. 8, pp. 1922-1927, Aug. 1992.
- [14] H. Tian, K.W. Kim, J.R. Hauser, N.A. Masnari, and M.A. Littlejohn, "Effects of Profile Doped Elevated Source/Drain Structures on Deep-Submicron MOSFETs," Solid-State Electronics, vol. 38, no. 3, pp. 573-579, 1995.
- [15] J. Tanaka, S. Kimura, H. Noda, T. Toyabe and S. Ihara, "A Sub-0.1µm Grooved Gate MOSFET with High Immunity to Short-Channel Effects," Int. Electron Device Meet. Tech. Dig., pp. 537-540, Dec. 1993.
- [16] S. Tanaka, T. Toyabe, S. Ihara, S. Kimura, H. Noda and K. Itoh, "Simulation of Sub-0.1-μm MOSFET's with Completely Suppressed Short-Channel Effect," IEEE Elec. Dev. Lett., vol. 14, no. 8, pp. 396-399,

Aug. 1993.

- [17] W.-H. Lee, Y.-J. Park and J.-D. Lee, "Gate Recessed (GR) MOSFET with Selectively Halo-Doped Channel and Deep Graded Source/Drain for Deep Submicron CMOS," Int. Electron Device Meet. Tech. Dig., pp.135-138, Dec. 1993.
- [18] J. Lyu, B-G. Park, K. Chun and J.-D. Lee, "A Novel 0.1µm MOSFET Structure with Inverted Sidewall and Recessed Channel," IEEE Elec. Dev. Lett., vol. 17, no. 4, pp. 157-159, Apr. 1996.
- [19] M. Chan, F. Assaderaghi, S.A. Parke, C. Hu and P.K. Ko, "Recessed-Channel Structure for Fabricating Ultrathin SOI MOSFET with Low Series Resistance," IEEE Elec. Dev. Lett., vol. 15, no. 1, pp. 22-24, Jan. 1994.
- [20] J.-H. Lee, H.-C. Shin, J.-J. Kim, C.-B. Park and Y.-J. Park, "Partially Depleted SOI NMOSFET's with Self-Aligned Polysilicon Gate Formed on the Recessed Channel Region," IEEE Elec. Dev. Lett., vol. 18, no. 5, pp.184-186, May 1997.
- [21] M. Orlowski, C. Mazure, and M. Noell, "A Novel Elevated MOSFET Source/Drain Structure," IEEE Elec. Dev. Lett., Vol. 12, No. 11, pp. 593-595, Nov. 1991.
- [22] J.R. Pfiester, M. Woo, J.T. Fitch and J. Schmidt, "Reverse Elevated Source/Drain(RESD) MOSFET for Deep Submicron CMOS," Int. Electron Device Meet. Tech. Dig., pp. 885-888, 1992.
- [23] M. Rodder and D. Yeakley, "Raised Source/Drain MOSFET with Dual Sidewall Spacers," IEEE Elec. Dev. Lett., Vol. 12, No. 3, pp. 89-91, 1991.
- [24] J.J. Sun, R.F. Bartholomew, K. Bellur, A. Srivastava, C.M. Osburn, and

N.A. Masnari, "The Effect of the Elevated Source/Drain Doping Profile on Performance and Reliability of Deep Submicron MOSFET's," IEEE Trans. Elec. Dev., Vol. 44, No. 9, pp. 1491-1497, Sep. 1997.

- [25] S. Yamakawa, K. Sugihara, T. Furukawa, Y. Nishioka, T. Nakahata, Y. Abe, S. Maruno, and Y. Tokuda, "Drivability Improvement on Deep Submicron MOSFET's by Elevation of Source/Drain Regions," IEEE Elec. Dev. Lett., vol. 20, no. 7, pp. 366-368, Jul. 1999.
- [26] A. Nishida, E. Murakami and S. Kimura, "Characteristics of Low-Energy BF₂- or As-Implanted Layers and Their Effect on the Electrical Performance of 0.15-μm MOSFET's," IEEE Trans. Elec. Dev., vol. 45, no. 3, pp. 701-709, Mar. 1998.
- [27] M. Rodder, S. Hattangady, N. Yu, W. Shiau, P. Nicollian, T. Laaksonen, C.P. Chao, M. Mehrotra, C. Lee, S. Murtaza and S. Aur, "A 1.2V, 0.1μm Gate Length CMOS Technology : Design and Process Issues," Int. Electron Device Meet. Tech. Dig., pp. 623-626, Dec. 1998.
- [28] Y.-H. Kim, S.-K. Chang, S.-S. Kim, J.-G. Choi, S.-H. Lee, D.-H. Hahn and H-D. Kim, "Characteristics of Dual Polymetal (W/WN_x/ Poly-Si) Gate CMOS for 0.1 μm DRAM Technology," Ext. Abst. Int. Conf. SSDM, pp. 12-13, 1999.
- [29] N. Lindert, M. Yoshida, C. Wann and C. Hu, "Comparison of GIDL in p⁺-poly PMOS and n⁺-poly PMOS Devices," IEEE Elec. Dev. Lett., vol. 17, no. 6, pp. 285-287, Jun. 1996.
- [30] R. Ghodsi, S. Sharifzadeh and J. Majjiga, "Gate-Induced Drain-Leakage in Buried-Channel PMOS-A Limiting Factor in Development of Low-Cost, High-Performance 3.3-V, 0.25-µm Technology," IEEE Elec. Dev.

Lett. vol. 19, no. 9, pp.354-356, Sep. 1998.

- [31] K.-W. Kim, C.-S. Choi, and W.-Y. Choi, "Analysis of a Novel Self-Aligned Elevated Source Drain Metal-Oxide Semiconductor Field-Effect Transistor with Reduced Gate-Induced Drain Leakage Current and High Driving Capability," Jpn. J. Appl. Phys., vol. 39, no. 11, pp. 6208-6211, Nov. 2000.
- [32] J.J. Sun and C.M. Osburn, "Impact of Epi Facets on Deep Submicron Elevated Source/Drain MOSFET Characteristics," IEEE Trans. Elec. Dev., vol. 45, no. 6, pp. 1377-1380, Jun. 1998.
- [33] A. Ishitani, H. Kitajima, N. Endo and N. Kasai, "Facet Formation in Selective Silicon Epitaxial Growth," Jpn. J. Appl. Phys., vol. 24, no. 10, pp. 1267-1269, Oct. 1985.
- [34] S. Wolf, Silicon Processing for the VLSI Era, Volume 3 The Submicron MOSFET, Lattice Press, 1995.
- [35] Y. Taur, S. Wind, Y.J. Mii, Y. Lii, D. Moy, K.A. Jenkins, C.L. Chen, P.J. Coane, D. Klaus, J. Bucchignano, M. Rosenfield, M.G.R. Thomson, and M. Polcari, "High Performance 0.1µm CMOS Devices with 1.5V Power Supply," Int. Electron Device Meet. Tech. Dig., pp.127-130, Dec. 1993.
- [36] T.Y. Chan, J. Chen, P.K. Ko and C. Hu, "The Impact of Gate-Induced Drain Leakage Current on MOSFET Scaling," Int. Electron Device Meet. Tech. Dig., pp. 718-721, Dec. 1987.
- [37] H.Wann, P.K. Ko and C. Hu, "Gate-Induced Band-to-Band Tunneling Leakage Current in LDD MOSFETs," Int. Electron Device Meet. Tech. Dig., pp. 147-150, Dec. 1992.
- [38] J.R. Brews, "The Submicron MOSFET," chap. 3 in High-Speed

Semiconductor Devices, S.M. Sze Ed., Wiley- Interscience, New York, 1990.

- [39] D.S. Wen, S.H. Goodwin-Johansson and C.M. Osburn, "Tunneling Leakage in Ge-PreAmorphized Shallow Junctinos," IEEE Trans. Elec. Dev., vol. 35, no. 7, pp. 1107-1115, Jul. 1988.
- [40] I.C. Chen, C.W. Teng, D.J. Coleman, and A. Nishimura, "Interface-Trap Enhanced Gate-Induced Drain Leakage Current in MOSFET," IEEE Elec. Dev. Lett., vol. 10, no. 5, pp. 216-218, May 1989.
- [41] E.O. Kane, "Zener Tunneling in Semiconductors," J. Phys. Chem. Solids, vol. 12, pp. 181-188, 1959.
- [42] S.M. Sze, *Physics of Semiconductor Devices*, Second Ed. John Wiley & Sons, 1981.
- [43] L.D. Landau and E.M. Lifshitz, *Quantum Mechanics*, Addison-Wesley, Reading, Mass., p.174, 1958.
- [44] E. Takeda and N. Suzuki, "An empirical model for device degradation due to hot-carrier injection," IEEE Elec. Dev. Lett., vol. EDL-4, pp. 111-113, 1983.
- [45] W. Weber, C. Werner, and A. Schwerin, "Lifetimes and Substrate Currents in Static and Dynamic Hot Carrier Degradation," Int. Electron Device Meet. Tech. Dig., pp. 390-393, 1986.
- [46] Y.A. El-Mansy and D.M. Caughey, "Modeling Weak Avalanche multiplication currents in IGFETs and SOS transistors for CAD," Int. Electron Device Meet. Tech. Dig., pp. 31-34, 1975.
- [47] P.K. Ko, "Approaches to scaling," in Advanced MOS Device Physics, N.G. Einspruch and G. Gildenblat, Eds., NewYork, Academic, 1989.

- [48] N.D. Arora and M.S. Sharma, "MOSFET Substrate Current Model for Circuit Simulation," IEEE Trans. Elec. Dev., vol. 38, no. 6, pp. 1392-1398, Jun. 1991.
- [49] C. Hu, "Hot carrier effects," in Advanced MOS Device Physics, N.G. Einspruch and G. Gildenblat, Eds. (VLSI Electronics, vol. 18), New York: Academic, 1989.
- [50] S. Tam, P. Ko and C. Hu, "Lucky-Electron Model of Channel Hot-Electron Injection in MOSFETs," IEEE Trans. Elec. Dev., vol. 31, no. 9, pp. 1116-1125, Sep. 1984.
- [51] B. Eitan and D. Frohman-Bentchkowsky, "Hot-Electron Injection into Oxide in n-channel MOS Devices," IEEE Trans. Elec. Dev., vol. 28, p. 328, 1981.
- [52] S. Tam, P. Ko, C. Hu and R.S. Muller, "Correlation between Substrate and Gate Currents in MOSFET's," IEEE Trans. Elec. Dev., vol. 29, pp. 1740-1744, Nov. 1982.
- [53] Technology Modeling Associate, Inc.: TSUPREM-4, Two-Dimensional Process Simulation Program, Version 6.5, User's Manual, Sunnyvale, California, May 1997.
- [54] T. Hori, "A 0.1-μm CMOS Technology with Tilt-Implanted Punchthrough Stopper (TIPS)," Int. Electron Device Meet. Tech. Dig., pp. 75-78, Dec. 1994.
- [55] Technology Modeling Associate, Inc.: MEDICI, Two-Dimensional Device Simulation Program, Version 4.0, User's Manual, Sunnyvale, California, October 1997.
- [56] B.G. Streetman, Solid State Electronic Devices, Fourth Ed. Prentice Hall,

1995.

- [57] R.C. Jaeger and F.H. Gaensslen, "Simulation of Impurity Freezeout Through Numerical Solution of Poisson's Equation with Application to MOS Device Behavior," IEEE Trans. Elec. Dev., vol. 27, no. 5, pp. 914-920, May 1980.
- [58] C. Lombardi, S. Manzini, A. Saporito and M. Vanzi, "A Physically Based Mobility Model for Numerical Simulation of Nonplanar Devices," IEEE Trans. Elec. Dev., vol. 7, no. 11, pp. 1164-1170, 1977.
- [59] D.M. Caughey and R.E. Thomas, "Carrier Mobilities in Silicon Empirically Related to Doping and Field," Proc. IEEE, vol. 55, pp. 2192-2193, 1967.
- [60] H. Hwang K.-S. Youn, J-G. Ahn, D. Yang, J-H. Ha, Y-J. Huh, J-W. Park, J.-J. Kim and W.-S. Kim, "Performance and Reliability Optimization of Ultra Short Channel CMOS Device for Giga-bit DRAM Applications," Int. Electron Device Meet. Tech. Dig., pp.435-438, Dec. 1995.
- [61] J.H. Choi, Y.J. Park, and H.S.Min, "Improvement of breakdown voltage in SOI n-MOSFET's using the gate-recessed (GR) structure," IEEE Elec. Dev. Lett., vol. 17, pp. 175-177, Apr. 1996.
- [62] D.Chen, E.C. Kan, U. Ravaioli, C-W. Shu, and R.W. Dutton, "An Improved Energy Transport Model Including Nonparabolocity and Non-Maxwellian Distribution Effects," IEEE Elec. Dev. Lett., vol. 13, no. 1, pp. 26-28, Jan. 1992.

Elevated Source Drain MOSFET

.

.

•

.

/

. /

/

가

Elevated Source Drain (E-S/D) MOSFET

/

,

•

.

/

· , LDD MOSFET / (dose)가 Gate-Induced Drain Leakage (GIDL) 가 가 가 가 · , GIDL

- 105 -

,



: Elevated Source Drain, , , , GIDL,

/ , ,